
 

 

 

May 21st, 2018 

Camden County Senate Bill 40 Board 

(dba) Camden County Developmental 

Disability Resources 

Open Session Board Meeting 



Agenda 



Camden County Senate Bill 40 Board 
d/b/a Camden County Developmental Disability Resources 

100 Third Street 
Camdenton, MO 65020 

 
Tentative Agenda for Open Session Board Meeting on May 21st, 2018, 4:00 PM 

 
This Board Meeting will be held at: 

 

255 Keystone Industrial Park Drive 
 

Camdenton, MO 65020 
 

Call to Order/Roll Call 

 
Approval of Agenda 
 
Approval of Open Session Board Meeting Minutes for April 16th, 2018 
 
Approval of Closed Session Board Meeting Minutes for April 16th, 2018 
 
Acknowledgement of Distributed Materials to Board Members 

 
• CLC Monthly Reports 

• LAI Monthly Reports 

• April 2018 Support Coordination Report 

• April 2018 CARF Reports (Updates not Available Until December 2018) 

• April 2018 Employment Report 

• April 2018 Agency Economic Report 

• March 2018 Credit Card Statement 
• Resolutions 2018-16, 2018-17, 2018-18, 2018-19, 2018-20, 2018-21, & 2018-22 

 

Speakers/Guests 

• NONE 

Monthly Reports 
 

• Arc of the Lake 
• Children’s Learning Center  
• Lake Area Industries (Includes Sealed Proposals Publicly Opened) 

Old Business for Discussion 

• Local Housing Initiative Updates 
• Transportation Updates  
• Arc of Missouri Statewide Victimization Campaign Updates 
• Office 365 Conversion Updates 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
New Business for Discussion 
 

• RFP 2018-1:  Banking Services (Includes Sealed Proposals Publicly Opened) 

• NOFA 2018-1:  I/DD Direct & Community Inclusion Supports & Services  

• Emergency Procurement – Keystone Office 

• Potential Dates for Budget Appropriations Committee Meeting 
 
April Support Coordination Report 
 
April CARF Reports 
 
April Employment Report 
 
April Agency Economic Report 
 
March Credit Card Statement 
 
Discussion & Conclusion of Resolution: 
 

1. Resolution 2018-16:  Approval to Enter Lease Agreement for Office Space 
2. Resolution 2018-17:  Approval of Amended Policy #10 
3. Resolution 2018-18:  Approval of Amended Policy #27 
4. Resolution 2018-19:  Approval of Amended Policy #31 
5. Resolution 2018-20:  Recognition of OATS, Inc. as Single Feasible Source for Public Transit Services 
6. Resolution 2018-21:  OATS Contract Renewal July 1st, 2018, to June 30th, 2019 - Employment 

Transportation 
7. Resolution 2018-22:  OATS MOU for Tri-County Transit Deviated Route & Extended 

Week/Weekend Services 
 
Public Comment 
 

Pursuant to ARTICLE IV, “Meetings”, Section 5. Public Comment: 
 
“The Board values input from the public. There shall be opportunity for comment by the public during the 
portion of the Board agenda designated for “Public Comment”. Public comment shall be limited to no 
more than 3 minutes per person to allow all who wish to participate to speak. It is the policy of the Board 
that the Board shall not respond to public comment at the Board meeting.” 
 
“Only comments related to agency-related matters will be received, however such comments need not be 
related to specific items of the Board’s agenda for the meeting. The Board shall not receive comments 
related to specific client matters and/or personnel grievances, which are addressed separately per Board 
policies and procedures.” 
 
 
Adjournment 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The news media may obtain copies of this notice by contacting: 
Ed Thomas, CCDDR Executive Director 
5816 Osage Beach Parkway, Suite 108, Osage Beach, MO  65065 
Office:  573-693-1511          Fax:  573-693-1515        Email:  director@ccddr.org 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

April 16th, 2018 
 

 Open Session Minutes 



  CAMDEN COUNTY DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITY RESOURCES 

Open Session Minutes of April 16th, 2018 

 

Members Present Shanna Weber, Chris Bothwell, Lisa Jackson,  

Angela Sellers, Kym Jones, Lorraine Russell  

 

Members Absent Suzanne Perkins, Paul DiBello, Brian Willey  

 

Others Present Ed Thomas, Executive Director 

 

Guests Present           Natalie Couch, Lillie Smith, (LAI) 

   Susan Daniels Lisa Berkstresser (CLC) 

   Jeanna Booth, Marcie Vansyoc, Connie Baker, Myrna Blaine,  

Linda Simms (CCDDR) 

 

Approval of Agenda  

 

Motion by Lisa Jackson, second Chris Bothwell, to approve the agenda as presented. 

 

AYE:  Shanna Weber, Chris Bothwell, Lisa Jackson,  

Angela Sellers, Kym Jones, Lorraine Russell 

 

    NO:    None 

 

New Board Members, Kym Jones, and Lorraine Russell were welcomed. 

 

Approval of Open Session Board Minutes for March 19th, 2018 

 

Motion by Shana Weber, second Chris Bothwell, to approve the March 19th, 2018  

Open Session Board Meeting Minutes as presented. 

 

    AYE:  Shanna Weber, Chris Bothwell, Lisa Jackson 

  

    NO:    None 

 

ABSTAIN:    Angela Sellers, Kym Jones, Lorraine Russell because  

                       they were not present at the Mach 19th, 2018 board    

                       meeting. 

 

Acknowledgement of Distributed Materials to Board Members 

   

• CLC Monthly Reports 

• LAI Monthly Reports 

• March 2018 Support Coordination Report 

• Mach 2018 CARF Reports (Updates not available until December 2018) 

• March 2018 Employment Report 

• March 2018 Agency Economic Report 

• February 2018 Credit Card Statement 

 



Speakers/Guests 

 

• None 

 

Monthly Reports 

 

Arc of the Lake 

Myrna Blaine 

 

The April newsletter and e-mail blast was sent out. Arc of the Lake is seeking ideas for fund raising, 

any donations would be greatly appreciated.  The Arc of the Lake is offering 6 weekend scholarships, 

2 each for Camden, Miller and Morgan County.  A 1-week scholarship for first time camper is also 

being offered in honor of Gigi Maha. Persons interested should send a letter to Myrna Blaine or 

Nancy Hayes.  A 5K run is being sponsored by Arc of the Lake this Saturday, 7 AM, at the Dogwood 

Festival.  Upcoming events sponsored by Arc of the Lake are: Resource Carnival at Keystone is April 

28th from 2 pm to 4pm – Ice cream social is July 21st from 1 PM to 3 PM at the park in Versailles, and 

the Annual swim party is August 12th from 10 AM to 4 PM.  

 

Children’s Learning Center (CLC)   

Susan Daniels 

 

CLC’s summer and fall classes are full and have a huge waiting list.  CLC hired two part time persons 

to help out for the summer session. Lake Area Art Council will hold an art auction on Saturday, April 

21st with part of the proceeds going to CLC and CADV.  $1440 was received from Community 

Foundation of the Lake (CFL) grant for one child’s tuition.  June 8th is Night Glow 5k at the 

Camdenton High School. The Lake’s Shootout has expanded their program and CLC will be a 

recipient of funds at the auction on August 25th.  

 

Lake Area Industries (LAI)  

Natalie Couch 

 

LAI’s net income for April was $5700. Contract Packaging is very busy - orders for the drink sticks 

are finished, and creamer project is ongoing.  LAI presently has more work than workers.  KNR is a 

new customer for LAI.   Progress is being made with the new program for foam recycling, the garden 

center opened last week, tropical plants will be in this week but having some difficulty due to the bad 

weather. LAI will be in the Dogwood Festival parade.  A commercial for McGrath Insurance will be 

done on Wednesday.  LAI will be going to Jefferson City next Tuesday for “Day of Choice for 

Employment.  LAI will be a recipient again this year for Pumpkin Chunkin and the grant funds will 

be used for half of bus fares CCDDR does not pay for. 

 

Old Business for Discussion 

 

• Local Housing Initiative Updates 

 

A meeting was held on April 11 at Keystone.  A meeting will also be held on April 22nd to plan for 

the housing conference that will be held in late August or early September regarding genuine 

concerns about housing at the lake.   

 

 



• Transportation Updates – Proposed Tri-County Transit Deviated Route 

 

In July, OATS will be running 2 buses 5 days a week, 10 hours a day (may expand to 12 hours a day) 

with a radius of 125 miles (includes 18 communities) around the lake for $2 a trip. The transportation 

is employment centered.  There will be stops in between communities, with designated pick up 

locations 1 mile either side of dedicated route, if needed, for seniors with disabilities.  Buses may go 

anywhere within the city limits.  Starting points for buses are still being worked out.   Map is online at 

Lake Sun and Lake News on line, the OATS website, and Lake Today.  Go-Caps – two schools 

cannot participate because of transportation problem.  LOTC could work towards their transportation 

needs if riders are over the age of 15. 

 

New Business for Discussion 

 

• Joint CCDDR/LAI Committee Meeting 4/12/18 

 

The meeting was a very productive and positive meeting.  LAI must connect to city sewer.  

Competitive employment and employment choices were discussed as LAI wants to give flexibility to 

persons wanting jobs.   

 

• New Support Coordinators 

 

Two new Support Coordinator will begin work on April 30.  CCDDR had difficulty finding qualified 

applicants for Support Coordinator positions.  Beginning May 1st, Sharla Jenks will begin doing 

monthly monitoring to relieve Support Coordinators of this task. 

 

March Support Coordination Report 

 

CCDDR is in a growth spurt again and at end of March, the agency had 337 clients.  Clients are 

transferring in and out, with some being in the intake process. April looks to be more promising. 

Caseload numbers are high, monitoring changes should help.   

 

Motion by Chris Bothwell, second Lisa Jackson, to approve the report as presented 

 

AYE:  Shanna Weber, Chris Bothwell, Lisa Jackson,  

Angela Sellers, Kym Jones, Lorraine Russell 

 

    NO:    None 

 

March CARF Reports 

 

Have no numbers for CARF this month.  CCDDR is working with Set-Works to implement the 

mechanisms for tracking numbers in proposed new outcomes.   

 

Motion by Chris Bothwell, second Lisa Jackson, to approve the report as presented 

 

AYE:  Shanna Weber, Chris Bothwell, Lisa Jackson,  

Angela Sellers, Kym Jones, Lorraine Russell 

 

    NO:    None 



March Employment Report 

 

Approximately 20% of working age clients are in community employment.  The report may be 

redesigned within the next few months.   

 

Motion by Chris Bothwell, second Lisa Jackson, to approve the report as presented 

 

AYE:  Shanna Weber, Chris Bothwell, Lisa Jackson,  

Angela Sellers, Kym Jones, Lorraine Russell 

 

    NO:    None 

 

March Agency Economic Report 

 

Agency budget continues to be well within budget guidelines.  LAI capital expenses are expected in 

the coming months.  Budget will be modified in July and may free up funds for housing voucher 

expansion or to provide other services. 

 

Motion by Chris Bothwell, second Lorraine Russell, to approve the report as presented 

 

AYE:  Shanna Weber, Chris Bothwell, Lisa Jackson,  

Angela Sellers, Kym Jones, Lorraine Russell 

 

    NO:    None 

 

February 2017 Credit Card Statement 

 

No Questions and a vote not necessary. 

 

Discussion & Conclusion of Resolution: 
  

1.  None 

 

Adjournment: 

 

Motion by Lisa Jackson, second Chris Bothwell to adjourn to closed session pursuant to section 

610,021 RSMO, subsections (1) and (11).  A voice vote was taken. 

    

 

AYE:  Shanna Weber, Chris Bothwell, Lisa Jackson,  

           Angela Sellers, Kym Jones, Lorraine Russell  

 

    NO:    None 

 

Board Members returned from Closed Session. 

 

 

 

 



Adjournment: 

 

 

Motion by Shana Weber, second Lisa Jackson, to adjourn meeting. 

 

 

AYE:  Shanna Weber, Chris Bothwell, Lisa Jackson,  

           Angela Sellers, Kym Jones, Lorraine Russell  

 

    NO:    None 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

_______________________________          ______________________________________ 

Board Chairman      Secretary 



CLC Monthly Report 























	

	

June		
8th	

Friday	
Pre-activities:	6:15pm	

Race:	8PM	 	Race	Location:		
Camdenton	High	School	

	

Participants	will	receive  

★  Coveted	Summer	Night			
			Glow	T-shirt	(if	registered	by		
			05/25/2018)	
★  Goody	Bag		(first	300	registrants)	
★  Bragging	rights	for	“Lighting		
     Up	the	Night”	for	kids		
     at	the	lake!	
	
SPECIAL	PRIZE	AWARDS		
★  Top	Overall	Male	&	Female				
     Finishers	
★  Best		Glow	
★  NEW	–	“BIGGEST	TEAM!!!”	★ 	
	
	
Pets	on	a	leash	&	Teams	are	welcome!	

DANCE	PARTY	FUN	

Music,	photo	booth	&	activities	to	“light	up	the	
night”	will	be	available	during	onsite	registration	
from	6:15—7:45PM	&	during	results	tabulation.		

PREREGISTER	(guaranteed	t-shirt)	
Deadline	for	Preregistration:	05/25/2018	

Fees	are	nonrefundable.	
	

$30		Individual	Entry	($35	on	Race	Day)		
$25	per	person	for	Group	Entry	of	4	or	more	($30	Race	Day)	

	
Register	online	at	CLCforkids.org,	use	link	on	Facebook	event	
page,	print	form	&	submit	by	mail	or	stop	by	in	person:	

Children’s	Learning	Center	
88	Third	Street	

Camdenton,	MO	65020	
573-346-0660	

www.clcforkids.org	
	
REGISTER	ON	RACE	DAY:	
	Camdenton	High	School	Commons	Area	6:15	–	7:45PM	

All	 contributions	 support	 Children’s	 Learning	 Center	 &	 directly	 impacts	
children	with	special	needs	and	developmental	delays	in	the	Lake	area.	Proceeds	
from	the	Summer	Night	Glow	help	provide	the	services	needed	for	children	2-
6	 years	 of	 age	 for	 community	 integration,	 social	 skills,	 and	 self-help/adaptive	
improvement.	Follow	our	event	on	Facebook	(CLC		Night	Glow	5k	Run/Walk)	
	

5K	Run/Walk	 	

CHILDREN’S	LEARNING	CENTER	



LAI Monthly Report 















Support Coordination 
Report 



J 
CAMDEN COUNTY SB40 BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

SUPPORT COORDINATION REPORT  

 
 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

April 2018 
 

Client Caseloads 
 

• Number of Caseloads as of April 30th, 2018:  329 

• Budgeted Number of Caseloads:  320 

• Pending Number of New Intakes:  6 

• Medicaid Eligibility:  86.63% 
 

Caseload Counts 
 

Rachel Baskerville - 10 
Cynthia Brown - 40 
Lori Cornwell - 38 
Dawn Evans - 36 
Linda Gifford - 33 
Sharla Jenks - 30 

Ryan Johnson - 38 
Jennifer Lyons - 38 
Annie Meyer - 37 

Nicole Whittle - 29 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
CARF Reports are 

Pending New 
Outcomes & 
Measures – 
Estimated 

Completion in 
December 2018 



Employment Report 
 



SC
 n

am
e

C
o

m
p

et
it

iv
e 

Em
p

lo
ym

en
t

C
u

rr
en

tl
y 

Se
e

ki
n

g 

Em
p

lo
ym

en
t

D
D

 E
m

p
lo

ym
en

t 

Su
p

p
o

rt
 S

er
vi

ce
s

Sh
el

te
re

d
 

Em
p

lo
ym

en
t 

V
R

 E
m

p
lo

ym
en

t 

Su
p

p
o

rt
 S

er
vi

ce
s

R
et

ir
ed

N
A

 f
o

r 
M

e
d

/B
eh

 

re
as

o
n

s

D
ay

 S
er

vi
ce

s

V
o

lu
n

te
e

rs

Agency Total 35 3 6 51 13 13 49 11 4

Percents from total of adults only18.92% 1.62% 3.24% 27.57% 7.03% 7.03% 26.49% 5.95% 2.16%

Baskerville 3 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0

Brown 4 0 0 3 3 1 2 1 0

Lyon 3 0 1 8 2 3 7 0 0

Cornwell 5 0 0 7 3 0 7 2 0

Gifford 8 2 0 5 0 1 2 0 0

Jenks 2 0 0 5 0 1 3 6 0

Johnson 3 1 0 5 2 2 5 0 2

Evans 4 0 0 5 1 1 7 0 0

Meyer 1 0 2 11 0 3 13 1 1

Whittle 2 0 3 2 2 0 3 1 1

19%

2%

3%

28%

7%

7%

26%

6%
2%

CCDDR Adults as of 4/12/2018

Competitive Employment

Currently Seeking Employment

DD Employment Support Services

Sheltered Employment

VR Employment Support Services

Retired

NA for Med/Beh reasons

Day Services

Volunteers



Agency Economic 
Report 

(Unaudited) 



 
CAMDEN COUNTY SB40 BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENCY ECONOMIC REPORT  
 
 

Page - 1 - of 13 

 

 

April 2018 

 

 
Targeted Case Management Income 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page - 2 - of 13 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Page - 3 - of 13 

 

 

 

Budget vs. Actuals: FY 2018 - FY18 P&L Departments 

April 2018 

 
SB 40 Tax Services 

 
Actual Budget Variance Actual Budget Variance 

Income   
 

    
 

  

   4000 SB 40 Tax Income 19,535  11,167  8,368    
 

0  

   4500 Services Income   
 

0  90,254  92,310  (2,056) 

Total Income 19,535  11,167  8,368  90,254  92,310  (2,056) 

Gross Profit 19,535  11,167  8,368  90,254  92,310  (2,056) 

Expenses   
 

    
 

  

   5000 Payroll & Benefits   
 

0  57,597  76,110  (18,513) 

   5100 Repairs & Maintenance   
 

0  1,309  543  766  

   5500 Contracted Business Services   
 

0  5,727  7,659  (1,932) 

   5600 Presentations/Public Meetings   
 

0  127  893  (766) 

   5700 Office Expenses   
 

0  4,189  2,207  1,982  

   5800 Other General & Administrative   800  (800) 3,299  1,127  2,172  

   5900 Utilities   
 

0  1,019  1,400  (381) 

   6100 Insurance   
 

0  1,290  1,346  (56) 

   6700 Partnership for Hope 3,398  4,645  (1,247)   
 

0  

   6900 Direct Services 12,442  9,608  2,834    
 

0  

   7100 Housing Programs 9,081  13,468  (4,387)   
 

0  

   7200 CLC 13,294  13,459  (165)   
 

0  

   7300 Sheltered Employment Programs 14,387  21,889  (7,502)   
 

0  

   7500 Community Employment Programs   600  (600)   
 

0  

   7900 Special/Additional Needs 8,623  8,864  (241)   
 

0  

Total Expenses 61,224  73,333  (12,109) 74,557  91,285  (16,728) 

Net Operating Income (41,689) (62,166) 20,477  15,697  1,025  14,672  

Other Expenses   
 

    
 

  

   8500 Depreciation   
 

0  2,707  2,650  57  

Total Other Expenses 0  0  0  2,707  2,650  57  

Net Other Income 0  0  0  (2,707) (2,650) (57) 

Net Income (41,689) (62,166) 20,477  12,991  (1,625) 14,616  

 

Budget Variance Report 

 
Total Income: During April of 2018, SB 40 Tax Revenues were higher than projected, and Services Program 
income was slightly lower than projected.   
 
Total Expenses: During April of 2018, overall SB 40 Tax program expenses were lower than budgeted 
expectations with variances (savings) in almost all categories.  Overall Services Program expenses were lower 
than budgeted expectations.  Savings in Payroll & Benefits, Presentations/Public Meetings Expenses, Utilities, 
Insurance and Contracted Business Services offset overages in R&M, Other G&A and Office Expenses. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page - 4 - of 13 

 

  

Budget vs. Actuals: FY 2018 - FY18 P&L Departments 

January - April, 2018 

 
SB 40 Tax Services 

 
Actual Budget Variance Actual Budget Variance 

Income   
 

    
 

  

   4000 SB 40 Tax Income 905,827  888,364  17,463    
 

0  

   4500 Services Income   
 

0  380,283  369,240  11,043  

Total Income 905,827  888,364  17,463  380,283  369,240  11,043  

Gross Profit 905,827  888,364  17,463  380,283  369,240  11,043  

Expenses   
 

    
 

  

   5000 Payroll & Benefits   
 

0  277,129  304,440  (27,311) 

   5100 Repairs & Maintenance   
 

0  3,955  2,173  1,782  

   5500 Contracted Business Services   
 

0  22,027  30,199  (8,172) 

   5600 Presentations/Public Meetings   
 

0  704  3,572  (2,868) 

   5700 Office Expenses   
 

0  16,058  8,829  7,229  

   5800 Other General & Administrative 1,413  3,200  (1,787) 10,974  12,288  (1,314) 

   5900 Utilities   
 

0  5,960  5,600  360  

   6100 Insurance   
 

0  5,159  5,384  (225) 

   6700 Partnership for Hope 6,423  10,530  (4,107)   
 

0  

   6900 Direct Services 41,170  38,432  2,738    
 

0  

   7100 Housing Programs 38,449  53,881  (15,432)   
 

0  

   7200 CLC 46,276  53,836  (7,560)   
 

0  

   7300 Sheltered Employment Programs 67,070  87,560  (20,490)   
 

0  

   7500 Community Employment Programs 68  2,400  (2,332)   
 

0  

   7900 Special/Additional Needs 27,003  35,456  (8,453)   
 

0  

Total Expenses 227,871  285,295  (57,424) 341,966  372,485  (30,519) 

Net Operating Income 677,955  603,069  74,886  38,317  (3,245) 41,562  

Other Expenses   
 

    
 

  

   8500 Depreciation   
 

0  10,393  10,600  (207) 

Total Other Expenses 0  0  0  10,393  10,600  (207) 

Net Other Income 0  0  0  (10,393) (10,600) 207  

Net Income 677,955  603,069  74,886  27,925  (13,845) 41,770  

 

Budget Variance Report 

 
Total Income: YTD SB 40 Tax Revenues were slightly higher than projected, and Services Program income was 
slightly higher than projected.  Services Program billing was budgeted to occur three times in December; 
however, there were only two billing cycles for that month.  The additional billing cycle occurred in January; 
therefore, Services income reflects the additional billing period.  The differences in billing period adjustments did 
not negatively impact variances on the final YTD budgeted net income versus the actual net income at YE 2017. 
 
Total Expenses: YTD overall SB 40 Tax program expenses were lower than budgeted expectations with 
variances (savings) in almost all categories.  Overall Services Program expenses were lower than budgeted 
expectations.  Savings in Payroll, Presentations/Public Meetings Expenses, Other G&A and Contracted 
Business Services offset overages in the Office Expenses, R&M and Utilities expenses. 
 
 
 
 



Page - 5 - of 13 

 

 
 
 

Balance Sheet 

As of April 30, 2018 

 

SB 40 
Tax Services 

ASSETS     

   Current Assets     

      Bank Accounts     

         1000 Bank Accounts     

            1005 SB 40 Tax Bank Accounts     

               1010 SB 40 Tax Account (County Tax Funds) - First Nat'l Bank 15,291  0  

               1015 SB 40 Tax Reserve Account (County Tax Funds) - Central Bank 229    

               1020 SB 40 Tax Certificate of Deposit 0    

               1025 SB 40 Tax - Bank of Sullivan 866,809    

               1030 SB 40 Tax Reserve - Bank of Sullivan 229,623    

            Total 1005 SB 40 Tax Bank Accounts 1,111,952  0  

            1050 Services Bank Accounts     

               1055 Services Account - 1st Nat'l Bank 0  202,454  

               1060 Services Certificate of Deposit   0  

            Total 1050 Services Bank Accounts 0  202,454  

         Total 1000 Bank Accounts 1,111,952  202,454  

      Total Bank Accounts 1,111,952  202,454  

      Accounts Receivable     

         1200 Services     

            1210 Medicaid Direct Service   38,232  

            1215 Non-Medicaid Direct Service   12,442  

         Total 1200 Services 0  50,674  

         1300 Property Taxes     

            1310 Property Tax Receivable 1,052,414    

            1315 Allowance for Doubtful Accounts (8,876)   

         Total 1300 Property Taxes 1,043,538  0  

         1350 Allowance for Doubtful Accounts 0    

      Total Accounts Receivable 1,043,538  50,674  

      Other Current Assets     

         1389 BANK ERROR Claim Confirmations (A/R) 0    

         1399 TCM Remittance Advices (In-Transit Payments) 0  0  

         1400 Other Current Assets     

            1410 Other Deposits 0    

            1430 Deferred Outflows Related to Pensions   60,875  

            1435 Net Pension Asset (Liability)   (21,526) 

         Total 1400 Other Current Assets 0  39,349  

         1450 Prepaid Expenses   0  

            1455 Prepaid-Insurance 0  20,069  

         Total 1450 Prepaid Expenses 0  20,069  

      Total Other Current Assets 0  59,418  

   Total Current Assets 2,155,491  312,545  



Page - 6 - of 13 

 

   Fixed Assets     

      1500 Fixed Assets     

         1510 100 Third Street Land   47,400  

         1511 Keystone Land   14,000  

         1520 100 Third Street Building   431,091  

         1521 Keystone   163,498  

         1525 Accumulated Depreciation - 100 Third Street   (138,793) 

         1526 Accumulated Depreciation - Keystone   (16,337) 

         1530 100 Third Street Remodeling   126,736  

         1531 Keystone Remodeling   86,937  

         1535 Acc Dep - Remodeling - 100 Third Street   (47,444) 

         1536 Acc Dep - Remodeling - Keystone   (3,264) 

         1540 Equipment   64,584  

         1545 Accumulated Depreciation - Equipment   (33,983) 

         1550 Vehicles   6,740  

         1555 Accumulated Depreciation - Vehicles   (6,740) 

      Total 1500 Fixed Assets 0  694,425  

   Total Fixed Assets 0  694,425  

TOTAL ASSETS 2,155,491  1,006,970  

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY     

   Liabilities     

      Current Liabilities     

         Accounts Payable     

            1900 Accounts Payable 0  1,220  

         Total Accounts Payable 0  1,220  

         Other Current Liabilities     

            2000 Current Liabilities     

               2005 Accrued Accounts Payable 0  0  

               2006 DMH Payable 0    

               2007 Non-Medicaid Payable 12,442    

               2010 Accrued Payroll Expense 0  0  

               2015 Accrued Compensated Absences 0  0  

               2025 Prepaid Services 0    

               2030 Deposits 0  17  

               2050 Prepaid Tax Revenue 0    

               2055 Deferred Inflows - Property Taxes 913,718    

               2060 Payroll Tax Payable   0  

                  2061 Federal W / H Tax Payable 0  96  

                  2062 Social Security Tax Payable 0  (73) 

                  2063 Medicare Tax Payable 0  3  

                  2064 MO State W / H Tax Payable 0  1,683  

               Total 2060 Payroll Tax Payable 0  1,708  

               2070 Payroll Clearing     

                  2071 AFLAC Pre-tax W / H 0  931  

                  2072 AFLAC Post-tax W / H 0  115  

                  2073 Vision Insuance W / H 0  (10,554) 

                  2074 Health Insurance W / H 0  28  



Page - 7 - of 13 

 

                  2075 Dental Insurance W / H 0  (135) 

                  2076 Savings W / H   (100) 

                  2078 Misc W / H   0  

                  2079 Other W / H   100  

               Total 2070 Payroll Clearing 0  (9,614) 

            Total 2000 Current Liabilities 926,160  (7,889) 

         Total Other Current Liabilities 926,160  (7,889) 

      Total Current Liabilities 926,160  (6,669) 

   Total Liabilities 926,160  (6,669) 

   Equity     

      3000 Restricted SB 40 Tax Fund Balances     

         3001 Operational 0    

         3005 Operational Reserves 229,317    

         3010 Transportation 60,487    

         3015 New Programs 10,030    

         3030 Special Needs 0    

         3040 Sheltered Workshop 115,520    

         3045 Traditional Medicaid Match 0    

         3050 Partnership for Hope Match 4,886    

         3055 Building/Remodeling/Expansion 0    

         3065 Legal 0    

         3070 TCM 0    

         3075 Community Resource 0    

      Total 3000 Restricted SB 40 Tax Fund Balances 420,239  0  

      3500 Restricted Services Fund Balances     

         3501 Operational   0  

         3505 Operational Reserves   200,000  

         3510 Transportation   0  

         3515 New Programs   0  

         3530 Special Needs   0  

         3550 Partnership for Hope Match   0  

         3555 Building/Remodeling/Expansion   60,809  

         3560 Sponsorships   0  

         3565 Legal   6,166  

         3599 Other   664,862  

      Total 3500 Restricted Services Fund Balances 0  931,837  

      3900 Unrestricted Fund Balances 1,653  (9,993) 

      3950 Prior Period Adjustment 0  0  

      3999 Clearing Account 91,801  101,552  

      Net Income 677,955  27,925  

   Total Equity 1,191,648  1,051,321  

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 2,117,809  1,044,652  

 
 
 

 
 
 



Page - 8 - of 13 

 

 
 
 
 
 

Statement of Cash Flows 

April 2018 

 

SB 40 
Tax Services 

OPERATING ACTIVITIES     

   Net Income (41,689) 12,991  

   Adjustments to reconcile Net Income to Net Cash provided by operations:     

         1210 Services:Medicaid Direct Service   7,880  

         1215 Services:Non-Medicaid Direct Service   16,286  

         1389 BANK ERROR Claim Confirmations (A/R) 1,709    

         1455 Prepaid Expenses:Prepaid-Insurance   (7,303) 

         1525 Fixed Assets:Accumulated Depreciation - 100 Third Street   898  

         1526 Fixed Assets:Accumulated Depreciation - Keystone   341  

         1535 Fixed Assets:Acc Dep - Remodeling - 100 Third Street   528  

         1536 Fixed Assets:Acc Dep - Remodeling - Keystone   344  

         1545 Fixed Assets:Accumulated Depreciation - Equipment   596  

         1900 Accounts Payable 0  460  

         2007 Current Liabilities:Non-Medicaid Payable (16,286)   

         2061 Current Liabilities:Payroll Tax Payable:Federal W / H Tax Payable   0  

         2062 Current Liabilities:Payroll Tax Payable:Social Security Tax Payable   0  

         2063 Current Liabilities:Payroll Tax Payable:Medicare Tax Payable   0  

         2064 Current Liabilities:Payroll Tax Payable:MO State W / H Tax Payable   (63) 

         2071 Current Liabilities:Payroll Clearing:AFLAC Pre-tax W / H   (55) 

         2072 Current Liabilities:Payroll Clearing:AFLAC Post-tax W / H   (12) 

         2073 Current Liabilities:Payroll Clearing:Vision Insuance W / H   (10,440) 

         2075 Current Liabilities:Payroll Clearing:Dental Insurance W / H   25  

         2076 Current Liabilities:Payroll Clearing:Savings W / H   0  

         2078 Current Liabilities:Payroll Clearing:Misc W / H   (169) 

   Total Adjustments to reconcile Net Income to Net Cash provided by operations: (14,577) 9,316  

Net cash provided by operating activities (56,267) 22,307  

INVESTING ACTIVITIES     

   1531 Fixed Assets:Keystone Remodeling   (34,695) 

Net cash provided by investing activities 0  (34,695) 

FINANCING ACTIVITIES     

   3050 Restricted SB 40 Tax Fund Balances:Partnership for Hope Match (7)   

Net cash provided by financing activities (7) 0  

Net cash increase for period (56,273) (12,388) 

Cash at beginning of period 1,168,225  214,842  

Cash at end of period 1,111,952  202,454  

 
 
 
 



Page - 9 - of 13 

 

 
 
 
 
 

Statement of Cash Flows 

January - April, 2018 

 

SB 40 
Tax Services 

OPERATING ACTIVITIES     

   Net Income 677,955  27,925  

   Adjustments to reconcile Net Income to Net Cash provided by operations:     

         1210 Services:Medicaid Direct Service   10,524  

         1215 Services:Non-Medicaid Direct Service   6,661  

         1389 BANK ERROR Claim Confirmations (A/R) 0    

         1455 Prepaid Expenses:Prepaid-Insurance   (1,434) 

         1525 Fixed Assets:Accumulated Depreciation - 100 Third Street   3,592  

         1526 Fixed Assets:Accumulated Depreciation - Keystone   1,362  

         1535 Fixed Assets:Acc Dep - Remodeling - 100 Third Street   2,112  

         1536 Fixed Assets:Acc Dep - Remodeling - Keystone   941  

         1545 Fixed Assets:Accumulated Depreciation - Equipment   (428) 

         1900 Accounts Payable (10,371) (6,853) 

         2007 Current Liabilities:Non-Medicaid Payable (6,661)   

         2050 Current Liabilities:Prepaid Tax Revenue (197,593)   

         2061 Current Liabilities:Payroll Tax Payable:Federal W / H Tax Payable   0  

         2062 Current Liabilities:Payroll Tax Payable:Social Security Tax Payable   0  

         2063 Current Liabilities:Payroll Tax Payable:Medicare Tax Payable   0  

         2064 Current Liabilities:Payroll Tax Payable:MO State W / H Tax Payable   (1,110) 

         2071 Current Liabilities:Payroll Clearing:AFLAC Pre-tax W / H   497  

         2072 Current Liabilities:Payroll Clearing:AFLAC Post-tax W / H   105  

         2073 Current Liabilities:Payroll Clearing:Vision Insuance W / H   (10,473) 

         2075 Current Liabilities:Payroll Clearing:Dental Insurance W / H   (76) 

         2076 Current Liabilities:Payroll Clearing:Savings W / H   0  

         2078 Current Liabilities:Payroll Clearing:Misc W / H   (309) 

   Total Adjustments to reconcile Net Income to Net Cash provided by operations: (214,625) 5,114  

Net cash provided by operating activities 463,330  33,039  

INVESTING ACTIVITIES     

   1531 Fixed Assets:Keystone Remodeling   (36,768) 

   1540 Fixed Assets:Equipment   (375) 

Net cash provided by investing activities 0  (37,143) 

FINANCING ACTIVITIES     

   3005 Restricted SB 40 Tax Fund Balances:Operational Reserves 906    

   3010 Restricted SB 40 Tax Fund Balances:Transportation 27,196    

   3015 Restricted SB 40 Tax Fund Balances:New Programs 10,030    

   3030 Restricted SB 40 Tax Fund Balances:Special Needs (2,207)   

   3040 Restricted SB 40 Tax Fund Balances:Sheltered Workshop (36,086)   

   3045 Restricted SB 40 Tax Fund Balances:Traditional Medicaid Match (790)   

   3050 Restricted SB 40 Tax Fund Balances:Partnership for Hope Match 934    



Page - 10 - of 13 

 

   3555 Restricted Services Fund Balances:Building/Remodeling/Expansion   9,081  

   3565 Restricted Services Fund Balances:Legal   6,166  

   3900 Unrestricted Fund Balances (73,835) (16,481) 

Net cash provided by financing activities (73,852) (1,234) 

Net cash increase for period 389,478  (5,338) 

Cash at beginning of period 722,474  207,792  

Cash at end of period 1,111,952  202,454  

 
 
 
 

Check Detail 
April 2018 

      1025 SB 40 Tax - Bank of Sullivan 

Date Transaction Type Num Name Amount 

04/05/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 4591 Camden County Senate Bill 40 Board (28,728.00) 

04/05/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 4592 Skillset LLC (1,522.69) 

04/05/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 4593 Childrens Learning Center (13,293.80) 

04/05/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 4594 Lake Area Industries (14,386.90) 

04/05/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 4595 Camdenton Apartments dba Lauren's Place (112.00) 

04/05/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 4596 DMH Local Tax Matching Fund (3,404.56) 

04/05/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 4597 Camdenton Apartments dba Lauren's Place (112.00) 

04/06/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 4598 Rodeway Inn (199.00) 

04/13/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 4599 Missouri Ozarks Community Action, Inc. (125.00) 

04/13/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 4600 MO HealthNet (16.00) 

04/13/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 4601 MO HealthNet (40.00) 

04/13/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 4602 MO HealthNet (40.00) 

04/13/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 4603 MO HealthNet (47.00) 

04/13/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 4604 MO HealthNet (216.00) 

04/13/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 4605 MO HealthNet (223.00) 

04/13/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 4606 MO HealthNet (232.00) 

04/13/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 4607 MO HealthNet (241.00) 

04/13/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 4608 MO HealthNet (258.00) 

04/13/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 4609 MO HealthNet (292.00) 

04/13/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 4610 MO HealthNet (321.00) 

04/13/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 4611 MO HealthNet (480.00) 

04/13/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 4612 MO HealthNet (642.00) 

04/13/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 4613 MO HealthNet (906.00) 

04/13/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 4614 MO HealthNet (617.00) 

04/16/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 4615 Rodeway Inn (199.00) 

04/19/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 4616 Brookview Apartments of Camdenton (100.00) 

04/19/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 4617 Camden Manors, Inc. (100.00) 

04/19/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 4618 Camdenton Apartments dba Lauren's Place (126.00) 

04/19/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 4619 Darryll Euler (421.00) 

04/19/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 4620 David A Schlenfort (689.00) 

04/19/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 4621 Glen Donnach, LLC (250.00) 



Page - 11 - of 13 

 

04/19/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 4622 Jacob and/or Lana Kentner (1,269.00) 

04/19/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 4623 Maryann VanCleave (652.00) 

04/19/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 4624 Revelation Construction & Development, LLC (375.00) 

04/19/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 4625 Steve Weisenfelder (681.00) 

04/19/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 4626 Twenter Properties (100.00) 

04/19/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 4627 Camden Manors, Inc. (100.00) 

04/19/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 4628 Camdenton Apartments dba Lauren's Place (254.00) 

04/19/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 4629 Revelation Construction & Development, LLC (745.00) 

04/19/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 4630 Steve Weisenfelder (695.00) 

04/19/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 4631 Brookview Apartments of Camdenton (100.00) 

04/19/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 4632 Revelation Construction & Development, LLC (849.00) 

04/23/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 4633 Rodeway Inn (199.00) 

04/27/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 4634 MO HealthNet (20.00) 

04/27/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 4635 Missouri Ozarks Community Action, Inc. (250.00) 

04/27/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 4636 Revelation Construction & Development, LLC (179.80) 

04/27/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 4637 MO HealthNet (194.00) 

04/27/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 4638 MO HealthNet (645.00) 

04/27/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 4639 MO HealthNet (645.00) 

04/27/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 4640 MO HealthNet (677.00) 

04/27/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 4641 MO HealthNet (348.00) 

04/30/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 4642 Rodeway Inn (199.00) 

      1055 Services Account - 1st Nat'l Bank 

Date Transaction Type Num Name Amount 

04/01/2018 Expense 
APR -ACH 

FEE First National Bank (24.95) 

04/05/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 8151 Annie Meyer (149.64) 

04/05/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 8152 Connie L Baker 0.00  

04/05/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 8153 Jennifer Lyon (185.19) 

04/05/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 8154 Linda Simms (199.63) 

04/05/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 8155 Reasbeck Construction, Inc. (34,695.00) 

04/05/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 8156 Schriefer's Office Equipment Inc (219.00) 

04/05/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 8157 Delta Voice & Data Technologies, LLC (202.62) 

04/05/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 8158 Direct Service Works (795.00) 

04/05/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 8159 Aflac (869.66) 

04/05/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 8160 Camden County PWSD #2 (59.98) 

04/05/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 8161 Julie Willamson (225.00) 

04/05/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 8162 MSW Interactive Designs LLC (268.95) 

04/05/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 8163 WCA Waste Corporation (22.00) 

04/05/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 8164 Linda Simms (1,371.37) 

04/06/2018 Expense 152246 Connie L Baker (1,003.69) 

04/06/2018 Expense 152247 Rachel K Baskerville (1,155.64) 

04/06/2018 Expense 152248 Myrna Blaine (1,543.18) 

04/06/2018 Expense 152249 Jeanna K Booth (1,134.37) 

04/06/2018 Expense 152250 Cynthia Brown (1,194.68) 

04/06/2018 Expense 152251 Lori Cornwell (924.07) 

04/06/2018 Expense 152252 Dawn R Evans (696.43) 

04/06/2018 Expense 152253 Linda Gifford (891.70) 



Page - 12 - of 13 

 

04/06/2018 Expense 152254 Sharla Jenks (913.89) 

04/06/2018 Expense 152255 Ryan Johnson (1,101.72) 

04/06/2018 Expense 152256 Jennifer Lyon (1,035.99) 

04/06/2018 Expense 152257 Annie Meyer (1,106.64) 

04/06/2018 Expense 152258 Sylvia M Santon (440.38) 

04/06/2018 Expense 152259 Eddie L Thomas (2,414.06) 

04/06/2018 Expense 152260 Marcie L. Vansyoc (1,460.93) 

04/06/2018 Expense 152261 Nicole M Whittle (1,091.07) 

04/06/2018 Expense 04/06/2018 Edward Jones (100.00) 

04/06/2018 Expense 04/06/2018 Internal Revenue Service (5,480.64) 

04/06/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 8165 Connie L Baker (56.72) 

04/06/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 8166 Lorraine  Schleigh (70.00) 

04/06/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 8167 TruClean (120.00) 

04/13/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 8168 Ryan Johnson (44.09) 

04/13/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 8169 Sharla Jenks (125.40) 

04/13/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 8170 Ameren Missouri (418.82) 

04/13/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 8171 AT&T (82.32) 

04/13/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 8172 AT&T TeleConference Services (8.77) 

04/13/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 8173 Ezard's, Inc. (87.91) 

04/13/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 8174 LaClede Electric Cooperative (415.58) 

04/13/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 8175 Lake Regional Occupational Medicine Clinic (48.00) 

04/13/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 8176 Lakeside Office Supply (34.78) 

04/13/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 8177 Mo Department Of Revenue (2.88) 

04/13/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 8178 Office Business Equipment (70.28) 

04/13/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 8179 Refills Ink (149.99) 

04/13/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 8180 Scott's Heating & Air (782.00) 

04/13/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 8181 TruClean (230.00) 

04/13/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 8182 Cynthia Brown (101.16) 

04/13/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 8183 Mo State Highway Patrol (32.00) 

04/20/2018 Expense 04/20/2018 Edward Jones (100.00) 

04/20/2018 Expense 152263 Connie L Baker (1,049.41) 

04/20/2018 Expense 152264 Rachel K Baskerville (1,190.31) 

04/20/2018 Expense 152265 Myrna Blaine (1,543.16) 

04/20/2018 Expense 152266 Jeanna K Booth (1,027.79) 

04/20/2018 Expense 152267 Cynthia Brown (1,200.38) 

04/20/2018 Expense 152268 Lori Cornwell (935.28) 

04/20/2018 Expense 152269 Linda Gifford (927.57) 

04/20/2018 Expense 152270 Sharla Jenks (873.34) 

04/20/2018 Expense 152271 Ryan Johnson (1,114.21) 

04/20/2018 Expense 152272 Jennifer Lyon (1,037.19) 

04/20/2018 Expense 152273 Annie Meyer (1,247.74) 

04/20/2018 Expense 152274 Sylvia M Santon (518.85) 

04/20/2018 Expense 152275 Eddie L Thomas (2,414.06) 

04/20/2018 Expense 152276 Marcie L. Vansyoc (1,481.51) 

04/20/2018 Expense 152277 Nicole M Whittle (1,014.70) 

04/20/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 8184 Ezard's, Inc. (1,800.00) 



Page - 13 - of 13 

 

04/20/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 8185 Refills Ink (199.97) 

04/20/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 8186 Springfield News Leader (1,164.00) 

04/20/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 8187 TECHIMPACT (688.78) 

04/20/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 8188 Bankcard Center (3,605.70) 

04/20/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 8189 Conaway Contracting (150.00) 

04/20/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 8190 Edward J. Rice Co., Inc. (212.27) 

04/20/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 8191 Lake Sun Leader (190.01) 

04/20/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 8192 KMB Technical Group, Inc. (420.00) 

04/20/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 8193 Linda Simms (1,330.18) 

04/20/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 8194 Missouri Dept of Revenue (1,751.00) 

04/20/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 8195 Mo Division Of Employment Security (1,589.13) 

04/20/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 8196 US Department of Education - Tracking # 1017780285 (499.43) 

04/20/2018 Expense 04/20/2018 Internal Revenue Service (5,380.35) 

04/27/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 8197 Mo Consolidated Health Care (10,620.28) 

04/27/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 8198 Charter Business (544.87) 

04/27/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 8199 City Of Camdenton (49.44) 

04/27/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 8200 Myrna Blaine (185.65) 

04/27/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 8201 Naught-Naught Agency (9,379.00) 

04/27/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 8202 Principal Life Ins (224.64) 

04/27/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 8203 Staples Advantage (223.74) 

04/27/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 8204 WCA Waste Corporation (22.00) 

04/27/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 8205 AT&T (97.05) 

04/27/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 8206 Conaway Contracting (1,850.00) 

04/27/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 8207 Eddie L Thomas 0.00  

04/27/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 8208 Linda Gifford (156.20) 

04/27/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 8209 Lori Cornwell (186.00) 

04/27/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 8210 TruClean (120.00) 

04/27/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 8211 Delta Dental of Missouri (368.42) 

04/30/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 8212 Eddie L Thomas (234.91) 

 



March 2018 
Credit Card Statement 

 





























































 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Resolutions 2018-16, 

2018-17, 2018-18, 
2018-19, 2018-20, 
2018-21 & 2018-22 



 
CAMDEN COUNTY SB40 BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

RESOLUTION NO. 2018-16  

 
 

 

Approval to Enter Lease Agreement for Office Space 

 
WHEREAS, Sections 205.968-205.972 RSMo and subsequent passage by Camden County voters of the 

Senate Bill 40 enabling legislation in August of 1980 allows for the business, property, affairs, 

administrative control, and management to rest solely with the Camden County SB40 Board of Directors 

(dba Camden County Developmental Disability Resources). 

 

WHEREAS, the Camden County SB 40 Board (dba Camden County Developmental Disability Resources) is 

currently seeking to expand Targeted Case Management services to a rapidly growing population of 

consumers and is constrained from doing so due to a lack of office space. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: 

 

1.  That the Camden County Senate Bill 40 Board (dba Camden County Developmental Disability 

Resources), hereafter referred to as the “Board”, hereby acknowledges the continued need for space devoted 

to administrative functions and desires a continued established presence in Osage Beach. 

 

2.  That the Board hereby authorizes the Executive Director to sign the lease agreement in Attachment “A” 

hereto so that space can be made available for administrative purposes, which ensures organizational 

growth, and to continue an established presence in Osage Beach. 

 

3.  A quorum has been established for vote on this resolution, this resolution has been approved by a 

majority Board vote as defined in the Board bylaws, and this resolution shall remain in effect until 

otherwise amended or changed. 

 

 

 

 

_________________________________________                    ___________________________ 

Chairman                                                                              Date 

 

 

_________________________________________                    ___________________________ 

Secretary, Vice Chairman, or Treasurer                             Date 



Attachment “A” to Resolution 

2018-16 
 

 



















 
CAMDEN COUNTY SB40 BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

RESOLUTION NO. 2018-17  
 
 

 

APPROVAL OF AMENDED POLICY #10 

 
WHEREAS, Sections 205.968-205.972 RSMo and subsequent passage by Camden Co. voters of the Senate 

Bill 40 enabling legislation in August of 1980 allows for the business, property, affairs, administrative 

control, and management to rest solely with the Camden County SB40 Board of Directors (dba Camden 

County Developmental Disability Resources). 

 

WHEREAS, the Camden County SB 40 Board (dba Camden County Developmental Disability Resources) 

reviews, amends, and appeals its existing Bylaws, policies, plans, manuals, and job descriptions and 

creates new Bylaws, policies, plans, manuals, and job descriptions as needed to remain effective in its 

Agency administration and remain compliant with regulatory statutes. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: 

 

1.  That the Camden County Senate Bill 40 Board (dba Camden County Developmental Disability 

Resources), hereafter referred to as the “Board”, hereby acknowledges the need to amend Policy #10, 

Program Funding & Purchase of Services and/or Supports Agreements. 

 

2.  That the Board hereby amends and adopts Policy #10 (Attachment “A” hereto) as presented. 

 

3.  A quorum has been established for vote on this resolution, this resolution has been approved by a 

majority Board vote as defined in the Board bylaws, and this resolution shall remain in effect until 

otherwise amended or changed. 

 

 

 

 

_________________________________________                    ___________________________ 

Chairman                                                                              Date 

 

 

_________________________________________                    ___________________________ 

Secretary, Vice Chairman, or Treasurer                             Date 



Attachment “A” to Resolution 

2018-17 
 

 

 

 

 



 

 Page 1 of 17 
KC01DOCS\1237450.2 

 

Policy Number: 

10 

Effective:  August 1, 2007 

Revised:  November 21, 2016,  

December 18, 2017, May 21, 2018 

Subject: Program Funding & Purchase of 

Services and/or Supports Agreements 
 

PURPOSE: 

It is the policy of Camden County Developmental Disability Resources (“CCDDR”) to provide 

program funding and Purchase of Services and/or Supports Agreements (“POS Agreements”) to 

agencies in accordance with CCDDR’s mission, strategic planning objectives, and annual fiscal 

budget, and applicable Federal and Missouri laws.  POS Agreements may include, but are not 

limited to, contracts, memorandums of understanding (MOU), or other related instruments used 

to convey funds. 

POLICY: 

I. General Information 

A. CCDDR is authorized by Sections 205.968 – 205.972 RSMo to serve persons 

with developmental disabilities, as defined in Sections 205.968 and 630.005 

RSMo.  The CCDDR Board of Directors (“Board”) may elect to directly provide 

programs or services for Camden County residents with developmental 

disabilities (“Eligible Persons”), contract with existing agencies to provide 

programs or services for Eligible Persons, or both.  CCDDR shall award public 

funds to agencies for programs and services that are used effectively, efficiently, 

and appropriately.   

B. The following general principals shall apply to all program funding and POS 

Agreements awarded to agencies in serving Eligible Persons: 

1. Funding shall be appropriated for CCDDR’s fiscal year (calendar year) or 

for special projects.  Program funding and POS Agreements are typically 

funded by CCDDR from Camden County property taxes received from the 

Camden County Treasurer or revenue from Targeted Case Management 

claims submitted to and paid by Medicaid.  The total amount of funds 

available is determined by calculating the estimated funds to be received 

in a stated fiscal (calendar) year less the total amount of funds needed to 

sustain CCDDR sponsored programs or services, operational reserves or 

other restricted fund accounts, Medicaid Waiver match commitments with 

the Department of Mental Health, Targeted Case Management expenses, 

administrative expenses, building expenses, and various other CCDDR 

operational expenses. 



 

 Page 2 of 17 
KC01DOCS\1237450.2 

2. CCDDR may be limited in the amounts, if any, it can award to agencies 

for any funding request. 

3. All agencies receiving program funding or a POS Agreement from 

CCDDR shall comply with all CCDDR funding Policies/Procedures and 

shall sign a funding agreement outlining the terms of CCDDR funding.  

CCDDR reserves the right to establish the conditions and requirements of 

the funding agreement(s). 

4. CCDDR will not provide program funding or POS Agreements to assist 

agencies in retiring their existing debts, to supplant an existing financial 

effort of the agency, or to establish endowment funds.  All funds awarded 

by CCDDR must be utilized for a specific purpose in serving Eligible 

Persons in agreement with CCDDR’s mission and Sections 205.968-

205.972 RSMo. 

5. CCDDR shall only provide program funding or POS Agreements for 

services rendered/expenses incurred by an agency after the date of Board 

approval of the agency’s application. 

6. An agency that fails to perform in accordance with CCDDR’s funding 

agreement shall be considered to be in default of said funding agreement.  

Any agency’s ineffective, inefficient, or inappropriate use of awarded 

funds or a portion thereof shall be subject to a recapture of said funds. 

7. Applicants of program funding or POS Agreements for partial funding of 

projects must demonstrate the availability and source of other funds for 

the development and/or continued operation of the proposed service or 

program. 

C. CCDDR may directly solicit, procure, or provide services and/or supports for 

Eligible Persons as deemed necessary. 

D. All agencies receiving funds from CCDDR are encouraged to attend the monthly 

Board meetings to discuss progress on programs funded by CCDDR and receive 

information on CCDDR activities and topics related to developmental disabilities. 

II. Annual Program Funding and POS Agreements 

A. Agencies requesting funds to sustain operations or continue to provide services 

and/or supports shall be required to submit a funding request annually to CCDDR.   

B. The annual funding request cycle will follow the following timelines: 

1. Funding requests for the next CCDDR fiscal (calendar) year are due to 

CCDDR no later than October 15th of the current fiscal (calendar) year.  

Acceptable delivery methods to CCDDR shall include delivery via email, 



 

 Page 3 of 17 
KC01DOCS\1237450.2 

United States Postal Service, third-party private service, or personal 

delivery. 

2. The CCDDR Executive Director shall review all annual funding requests 

and will make recommendations to the Board at the November or 

December Board meeting.  Certain circumstances may exist which require 

additional review by the Executive Director and/or the Board. 

3. The Board generally approves the preliminary annual budget for the next 

fiscal (calendar) year in November; however, the Board may re-convene if 

needed in December to approve a final budget.  No annual funding request 

shall be approved until the next fiscal (calendar) year budget is approved 

by the Board. 

C. Agreements for funds awarded prior to the end of the current fiscal (calendar) 

year for the following fiscal (calendar) year are typically signed no later than 

December 31st. 

1. If a decision about a funding request is made after December 31st, the 

funding agreement will be signed following any approval with the funds 

retroactive to January 1st. 

III. Special Program Funding and POS Agreements (New Program or One-Time Funds) 

A. CCDDR will review special funding requests (new program or one-time funding 

applications) in situations including, but not limited to: 

1. The health and/or safety of Eligible Persons is threatened; 

2. The health and/or safety of persons providing support services for Eligible 

Persons is threatened; 

3. Programs or services provided by an agency are threatened; 

4. Amounts originally appropriated for an approved program or service are 

insufficient due to unanticipated growth in the program or service; 

5. Unexpected/unanticipated funding opportunities arise; 

6. A situation arises which presents an immediate financial hardship for an 

agency that cannot wait until the next budget cycle;  

7. A new program, service, and/or support which will provide community 

inclusion, community employment, community transportation, housing, 

immediate care, or other services and/or supports which are not currently 

offered or improves the quality or environment of community living 

and/or an existing service and/or support; 



 

 Page 4 of 17 
KC01DOCS\1237450.2 

8. Funds for one-time expenses such as acquisition of property, renovations, 

or equipment that have a useful life of one (1) or more years; 

9. Funds for one-time expenses related to new construction of or renovation 

to existing buildings; or 

10. Funds for the purchase of vehicles utilized in transporting Eligible Persons 

for participation in programs or community inclusion when other State 

and/or Federal transportation funding resources have been exhausted. 

B. Special funding requests must be submitted to CCDDR’s Executive Director no 

less than 30 days prior to the next regularly scheduled Board meeting.   

C. The CCDDR Executive Director shall review all special funding requests and will 

make recommendations to the Board at the next regularly scheduled Board 

meeting.   

D. CCDDR’s Executive Director and/or Board may request additional information, 

supporting documents, or other supportive information to support the special 

funding request before a decision is rendered. 

 

IV. Eligibility Criteria 

A. Agencies applying for funds from CCDDR must utilize said funds to serve 

Eligible Persons.   

B. Eligible Persons participating in programs offered or receiving services and/or 

supports provided by agencies should be current or former clients of the 

Department of Mental Health, Division of Developmental Disabilities and/or 

CCDDR.  If not a former or current client of the Department of Mental Health, 

Division of Developmental Disabilities and/or CCDDR, an intake eligibility 

application and supporting documentation may be requested to support client 

eligibility. 

C. The Board may, at its sole discretion, impose limitations with respect to  

community inclusive programs and services such as programs to be administered 

and services to be provided.  Such limitations as determined by the Board may 

depend upon: the availability of funds; the appropriate, efficient, and effective use 

of funds; the needs of Eligible Persons to be served; and the needs within the 

community. 

V. Agencies Eligible for Program Funding/POS Agreements  

A. CCDDR funds are available to agencies which are serving, or will serve upon 

implementation of a program, service, and/or support, Eligible Persons.   



 

 Page 5 of 17 
KC01DOCS\1237450.2 

B. POS Agreements and program funding may be awarded to for-profit agencies, 

and shall be dependent upon the needs of Eligible Persons and the availability of 

not-for-profit programs, services, and/or support agencies.   

C. CCDDR reserves the right to procure services and/or supports without a funding 

application or POS Agreement in instances involving Medicaid or Medicaid 

Waiver services and/or supports, where individual choice is a prerequisite, or in 

instances where the immediate procurement of such services and/or supports are 

deemed necessary. 

VI. Funding Application Requirements 

A. General Requirements: 

1. Agencies shall submit current proof of insurance coverage for all 

programs, services, and assets.  The agency shall maintain minimum 

insurance coverages as set forth in the CCDDR Funding Agreement.  

CCDDR shall be named as an additional insured on all liability insurance 

policies that cover the programs and services funded by CCDDR.  The 

agency shall also maintain blanket fidelity coverage in an amount equal to 

or greater than awarded funds from CCDDR for all persons handling said 

funds. 

2. Not-for-profit agencies shall be registered as a not-for-profit corporation 

in the State of Missouri and have a current Certificate of Good Standing 

from the Secretary of State’s office, provide a current 501(c)3 

determination letter from the Internal Revenue Service, and provide a 

copy of the most recent 990 filed with the Internal Revenue Service 

a. If the agency has been in operation for less than two (2) 

agency fiscal years prior to the application for funds 

and the agency’s first fiscal year has not ended or the 

agency’s first fiscal year has ended but it has not been 

six (6) months since the end of the first fiscal year, the 

agency must submit the copy of the 990 by the end of 

the sixth (6th) month after the end of the agency’s fiscal 

year.   

3. For-profit agencies shall have a current Certificate of Good Standing from 

the Secretary of State’s office for the programs and/or services/supports 

identified in the application. 

4. If applicable, agencies must submit proof of good standing with regard to 

current licensure, certification, or accreditation from the appropriate 

Missouri and/or Federal authority having oversight responsibilities (i.e.  

DESE, DMH, etc.). 



 

 Page 6 of 17 
KC01DOCS\1237450.2 

5. Agencies must be in good standing with regard to the successful 

implementation of previous services, programs, or projects funded by 

CCDDR. 

6. Agencies must submit a business plan or detailed description of the 

program(s), service(s), project(s), etc. for which funds are to be used. 

7. Agencies must submit a copy of their current strategic plan, Bylaws, 

Articles of Incorporation, financial management policy, financial 

management procedures, and other policies and procedures when 

submitting an application for the first time. 

8. Agencies shall provide other documents as deemed necessary by CCDDR 

Executive Director and/or the Board. 

B. The annual funding application requirements are as follows: 

1. Agencies shall demonstrate fiscal viability by submitting:  

a. a current year-to-date detailed balance sheet;  

b. current year-to-date detailed statement of revenue and expenses vs.  

budgeted revenue and expenses for each program administered by 

the agency;  

c. current year-to-date detailed cash flow statement;  

d. detailed budget for the next 12 consecutive months or fiscal year 

for each program administered by the agency; and 

e. the annual funding application.   

2. Agencies that have been in operation for more than three (3) agency fiscal 

years prior to the application for funds must include in addition to the 

documents requested in Subsection (1): 

a. the previous two agency fiscal year-ending detailed balance sheets;  

b. detailed statements of revenue and expenses vs.  budgeted revenue 

and expenses for each program administered by the agency; 

c.  detailed cash flow statements; and 

d. third-party audit reports with the funding application.   

3. Agencies that have been in operation for less than three (3) agency fiscal 

years prior to the application for funds must include in addition to the 

documents requested in Subsection (1):  



 

 Page 7 of 17 
KC01DOCS\1237450.2 

a. the agency’s previous fiscal year-ending detailed balance sheet:  

b. detailed statement of revenue and expenses vs.  budgeted revenue 

and expenses for each program administered by the agency;  

c. detailed cash flow statement; and 

d. third-party audit report with the funding application.   

4. Agencies that have been in operation for less than two (2) agency fiscal 

years prior to the application for funds must include in addition to the 

documents requested in Publication (1): 

a. a copy of the previous fiscal year-ending detailed balance sheet;  

b. detailed statement of revenue and expenses vs.  budgeted revenue 

and expenses for each program administered by the agency;  

c. detailed cash flow statement; and 

d. third-party audit report within six (6) months after the end of the 

agency’s previous fiscal year if the first fiscal year has not ended at 

the time of the funding application, if the agency’s first fiscal year 

has ended but it has not been six (6) months since the end of the 

first fiscal year, the agency must submit the third-party audit report 

by the end of the sixth (6th) month after the end of the agency’s 

fiscal year. 

C. The special funding application requirements are as follows: 

1. For new program, service, and/or support applications, agencies shall 

provide detailed information about the program, service, and/or support 

including, but not limited to: 

a. a business and/or strategic plan; 

b. projected budget; 

c. anticipated outcomes; 

d. summary of how CCDDR funds will be utilized in program or 

service development identified in the application; and 

e. current or past agency financial reports (if applicable). 

 

2. For operational shortfall, capital improvement, equipment purchase, new 

construction, renovation, vehicle acquisition, or health and safety related 



 

 Page 8 of 17 
KC01DOCS\1237450.2 

applications, agencies shall provide detailed information about the 

circumstances including, but not limited to: 

a. a business and/or strategic plan;  

b. projected budget; 

c. anticipated outcomes; 

d. summary of how CCDDR funds will be utilized; and 

e. current or past agency financial reports (if applicable). 

VII. Programs, Services, and/or Supports Eligible for Funding 

A. Agencies applying for funds from CCDDR must utilize the funds for programs, 

services, and/or supports for Eligible Persons including, but not limited to the 

following: 

1. Sheltered employment programs, services, and/or supports; 

2. Community employment programs, services, and/or supports; 

3. Pre-vocational programs, services, and/or supports; 

4. Immediate care programs, services, and/or supports; 

5. Community inclusion programs, services, and/or supports; 

6. Residential programs, services, and/or supports; and 

7. “Related” programs, services, and/or supports defined as: 

a. Programs designed toward enabling an Eligible Person to progress 

toward normal living and/or to develop his or her capacity, 

performance, or relationships with other persons; 

b. Programs which provide services related to a place of residence or 

social centers for Eligible Persons; or 

c. Programs which provide a controlled environment. 

B. Agencies applying for funds from CCDDR which fall within the area of “related” 

programs, services, and/or supports will be asked to show how the program, 

service, and/or support qualifies under the above definition. 

C. The Board shall, at its discretion, determine if the program, service, and/or 

support qualifies when evaluating all applications. 



 

 Page 9 of 17 
KC01DOCS\1237450.2 

VIII. Funding Categories 

A. Annual and Special Funding 

1. Program Funding 

a. CCDDR may provide program funding to sustain existing agency 

operations and/or to continue providing programs, services, and/or 

supports to Eligible Persons.   

b. Program funding may be utilized for direct operational costs, such 

as personnel, fringe benefits, supplies, travel, professional fees, etc.  

c. A percentage of indirect/overhead costs may also be funded.   

d. All funding will be based on program specific measures. 

2. POS Agreements 

a. POS Agreements with agencies shall provide direct services and/or 

supports for Eligible Persons during a specified period of time.   

b. A “unit” of service and a “rate per unit” is determined and 

approved by the Board.   

c. The agency then invoices CCDDR for the number of “units” 

provided by the agency. 

B. Special Funding 

1. New Programs 

a. CCDDR may provide one-time program funding or POS 

Agreements for new programs.   

b. Criteria to be used to review and evaluate all applications for new 

programs, services, and/or supports include, but is not limited to: 

i. The extent to which the new program, service, and/or 

support has been identified by CCDDR as a need based 

upon needs survey results, waiting list data, or other viable 

sources; 

ii. The extent to which other Federal, State, and local agencies 

or funding sources are mandated to fund the proposed new 

program, service, and/or support; 

iii. The extent to which the new program, service, and/or 

support will contribute to the advancement of and/or 



 

 Page 10 of 17 
KC01DOCS\1237450.2 

improvement of promoting Eligible Persons to progress 

toward normal living; 

iv. The availability of CCDDR revenues to sustain the new 

program, service, and/or support on an on-going basis; 

v. The extent to which the new program, service, and/or 

support falls within Sections 205.968-205.972 RSMo in 

terms of eligible services to be funded; 

vi. The extent to which the estimated cost for the new 

program, service, and/or support is reasonable and is cost-

effective; 

vii. The extent to which other available revenue sources have 

been investigated and accessed by the agency requesting 

CCDDR funds; 

viii. The extent to which the new program, service, and/or 

support addresses the needs of Eligible Persons; 

ix. The extent to which the agency is: certified or accredited by 

State and national bodies; program, service, or support 

personnel are well qualified by training and/or experience 

for their roles; and the applicant agency has adequate 

facilities and personnel; 

x. The extent to which, insofar as practicable, the proposed 

program, service, and/or support, if well executed, is 

capable of attaining the proposed outcomes and goals;  

xi. The strength of the program, service, and/or support plan 

for evaluation in terms of meeting stated outcomes/goals; 

and 

xii. The agency’s historical performance in other programs, 

services, and/or supports funded by CCDDR (if applicable) 

or historical performance in other programs, services, 

and/or supports not funded by CCDDR (references may be 

requested). 

c. CCDDR will evaluate each one-time program funding application 

as it relates to program feasibility or viability and its impact on 

Eligible Persons participating in the program. 

 

 



 

 Page 11 of 17 
KC01DOCS\1237450.2 

2. Construction/Renovation Projects & Purchases of Property 

a. All new construction projects and renovation projects require 

development of uniform specifications for the work to be done, 

adherence to this Policy, adherence to CCDDR Procurement 

Policy #31, adherence to the Missouri Prevailing Wage Law when 

applicable, and adherence to all applicable Federal, Missouri, and 

local laws.   

b. The following information shall be submitted with the agency’s 

program funding application when requesting funding for new 

construction, property purchase, or renovation projects: 

i. Description of the project and benefits to persons served; 

ii. Projected timeline for initiation and completion of project; 

iii. Business plan and how proposed property acquisition, 

construction, or renovation will enhance the agency’s 

business operations and/or mission in serving Eligible 

Persons; 

iv. Land site and value (for proposed purchases of property 

that CCDDR is to fund, an Independent Appraisal of the 

property from a certified appraiser is required); 

v. Architectural plans (if applicable); and 

vi. Itemized cost breakdown for the entire project. 

c. For all buildings or residential facilities proposed to be purchased, 

constructed, or renovated exclusively with CCDDR funds, the 

Board reserves the right to retain ownership of the property and 

subsequently lease the property to the agency for a specific 

purpose, hold recorded interest in title to the property, or be 

recorded as the first-priority lien-holder.   

d. For all buildings or residential facilities proposed to be purchased, 

constructed, or renovated which are partially funded by CCDDR 

funds, the Board reserves the right to hold recorded interest in title 

to the property or be recorded as a lien-holder.   

e. Agencies awarded funds for the purchase, construction, or 

renovation of property shall maintain adequate insurance coverage 

for said items, and shall furnish CCDDR with evidence annually.  

For all buildings or residential facilities proposed to be purchased, 

constructed, or renovated exclusively with CCDDR funds, 



 

 Page 12 of 17 
KC01DOCS\1237450.2 

CCDDR shall be named as additional insured and loss payee on 

such policy. 

f. Restricted covenants shall be recorded for the agency’s use of 

CCDDR funds to: purchase property; purchase, construct, or 

renovate buildings; or purchase, construct, or renovate of 

residential facilities. 

3. Vehicle Purchases 

a. CCDDR may provide one-time program funding to enable 

agencies to: 

i. improve or replace their existing fleet of vehicles;  

ii. purchase lift equipment or safety equipment, such as 

restraints; or  

iii. to purchase new vehicles as part of an expansion of 

transportation services.   

b. All vehicle purchases require adherence to this Policy, adherence 

to CCDDR Procurement Policy #31, applicable sections contained 

within CCDDR Transportation Policy #36 as outlined in the 

Funding Agreement, and adherence to all applicable Federal, 

Missouri, and local laws 

i. Agency purchases of vehicles at the 

State/Federal Surplus warehouse in Jefferson 

City or through the MoDOT Section 

5309/5310/5311 program are not subject to the 

conditions outlined in CCDDR Procurement 

Policy #31.   

c. For vehicles purchased entirely with CCDDR funds, the vehicle 

must be titled with CCDDR listed as first-priority lien-holder, and 

CCDDR will physically hold title for the duration of the vehicle’s 

service. 

d. Agencies awarded funds for the purchase of vehicles shall maintain 
adequate insurance coverage for said items, and shall furnish 
CCDDR with evidence of insurance annually. 

e. Agencies are required to provide CCDDR with vehicle serial 

numbers and other appropriate identifying information. 

f. The vehicle must be used in transporting Eligible Persons.   



 

 Page 13 of 17 
KC01DOCS\1237450.2 

g. Agencies must submit a request in writing for CCDDR’s 

permission to dispose of, transfer, or sell a vehicle purchased with 

CCDDR funds. 

i. CCDDR reserves the authority to determine a reasonable 

sale price and shall use the wholesale value of the vehicle 

as specified in The Official Bus Blue Book by Bus 

Solutions, in consideration with straight-line depreciation 

methods.   

ii. CCDDR reserves the right to retain proceeds from sales of 

vehicles purchased exclusively with CCDDR funds. 

iii. Where vehicles have been partially purchased with Federal 

or MoDOT funds (Section 5309/5310/5311), Federal or 

MoDOT property management standards shall prevail, with 

remittance of the sale price to the CCDDR equal to 

CCDDR’s percentage match (typically 20%). 

h. CCDDR will not provide funding to replace vehicles unless the 

odometer reading of the vehicle to be replaced is above 100,000 

miles. 

4. Operational Shortfall 

a. CCDDR may provide one-time program funding for program 

specific operational shortfalls, such as unanticipated expenses 

incurred as a result of changes in health and safety compliance 

standards, replacement or repairs of necessary equipment, or other 

unforeseen and uncontrollable circumstances affecting the 

successful operation of a program.   

b. Operational shortfalls will be heavily scrutinized by the Board.   

c. Mismanagement or management errors will not be considered 

legitimate reasons for one-time program funding requests. 

5. Health and Safety 

a. CCDDR may provide one-time program funding to an agency if 

the health and safety of an Eligible Person/Persons is/are 

threatened, and the agency is financially unable to accommodate a 

remedy to the health and safety issue.   

b. Health and safety concerns will be heavily scrutinized by the 

Board.   



 

 Page 14 of 17 
KC01DOCS\1237450.2 

c. If it has been determined mismanagement or management errors 

are the reason for the health and safety issue, additional 

investigatory authorities may be notified and continued funding of 

any other CCDDR funded agency program will be reviewed and 

reconsidered immediately. 

IX. Monitoring of Funds Utilization 

A. All agencies receiving annual funding from CCDDR for the on-going sustainment 

of programs, services, and/or supports shall provide a verifiable, detailed 

accounting of funds utilized as identified in the funding agreement(s). 

B. All agencies receiving special funding from CCDDR must submit copies of actual 

invoices and checks for payment of the invoices for approved expenditures.   

C. For operational, operational shortfall, new program, and/or other special project 

or program funding, a verifiable, detailed accounting of how the funds were 

utilized is required.   

D. If the agency requests CCDDR to make a direct payment to the supplier or 

manufacturer rather than being remunerated by CCDDR, an invoice from the 

supplier or manufacturer for all approved expenditures is needed. 

E. Purchase of Assets 

1. Agencies awarded funds for the purchase of assets (equipment, 

furnishings, vehicles, property, etc.) in excess of $1,000 for items with a 

useful life of over 1 year shall complete an asset inventory report annually 

for the depreciable period applicable to the item following the award. 

2. Agencies awarded funds for the purchase of assets shall maintain a loss 

control/risk management system to prevent damage or theft of such items.   

3. Any damage or theft of an asset in excess of $1,000 purchased with 

CCDDR funds shall be properly investigated, with the appropriate 

reports/findings submitted for review to the Board. 

4. Agencies awarded funds for the purchase of assets in excess of $1,000 

shall maintain adequate property insurance coverage for said items, and 

shall furnish CCDDR with evidence of insurance annually for all such 

capital items. 

5. If purchased assets are found not to be used during a six-month 

consecutive period of time during the first three years of ownership, said 

items shall be made available to CCDDR for reassignment to another 

agency, to CCDDR for its own uses, or for resale by CCDDR, with 

proceeds returning to CCDDR. 



 

 Page 15 of 17 
KC01DOCS\1237450.2 

6. If purchased assets are found not to be used for or by Eligible Persons, the 

agency shall repay CCDDR the undepreciated or market value of said 

items or make the items available to CCDDR for reassignment to another 

agency. 

7. Agencies awarded funds for the purchase of an asset in excess of $1,000 

shall not sell, trade, or dispose of the item within a three-year period of 

time after the award unless prior approval has been obtained from 

CCDDR.  If prior approval is not obtained, the agency shall repay 

CCDDR for the funding amount used to purchase the asset. 

8. All purchased assets shall be depreciated in accordance with generally 

accepted accounting principles.  The agency shall be expected to establish 

and fund a depreciation reserve account to replace the item when this 

becomes necessary. 

F. Purchase of Property 

1. If CCDDR provides program funding for the purchase of real property and 

the agency sells, trades, or ceases to use the property for the purposes 

indicated in its original proposal and/or program funding application 

within five years from the date of being awarded funds, all funds 

disbursed in the project shall be reimbursed to CCDDR.   

a. If the agency continues to serve Eligible Persons, but uses the 

property for a different purpose than in the original proposal, a 

request must first be made in writing to the Board to utilize the 

property in a different manner.   

b. If the request is denied, the agency shall repay CCDDR for the 

funding amount used to purchase the real property. 

2. For all purchases of personal property in excess of $5,000.00, the agency 

shall grant to CCDDR a first-priority security interest in the property and 

all proceeds thereof.   

a. The agency will execute a security agreement   for the benefit of 

CCDDR and will, from time to time, execute, deliver, file, and 

record any statement, assignment, instrument, document, or 

agreement or take any other action that may be necessary or 

desirable in order to create, preserve, perfect, or validate the line 

on such personal property.   

b. The security agreement shall be in effect for 10 years or until 

property is disposed of. 



 

 Page 16 of 17 
KC01DOCS\1237450.2 

X.  Monitoring Agencies Receiving Funds 

A. As a publicly-supported entity, CCDDR places a premium on the accountability 

of its funds.  This responsibility extends to those agencies funded by CCDDR.   

B. Agencies will be required to provide CCDDR with a full financial disclosure of 

all operations. 

C. Agencies shall establish internal controls, systems, and procedures for monitoring 

the fiscal position of their agency and the use of CCDDR funds. 

D. Agencies’ financial management controls and record-keeping shall be in 

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. 

E. All agencies that have funding agreements with CCDDR shall submit an 

organization-wide independent audit to CCDDR conducted by a Certified Public 

Accountant following Generally Accepted Auditing Standards for the period in 

which the funding was received.   

1. If this funding extends into a subsequent fiscal year(s) for the agency, a 

subsequent audit(s) will be required.   

2. The audit document shall include the auditor’s Management Report and 

comments on compliance with accounting standards and internal controls.   

3. The audit is due in the CCDDR office within six (6) months of the close of 

the agency’s fiscal year.   

4. The DESE Audit Analysis shall accompany the audit report for sheltered 

employment services.   

5. Copies of audits by any regulatory entity must also be submitted to 

CCDDR within thirty (30) days of the agency’s receipt of the completed 

audit report from the regulatory entity. 

6. Agencies receiving $10,000 or less annually or through a one-time  

program funding application which carries no ongoing funding obligation 

by CCDDR may request an exception to the audit requirement.   

i. This audit exception request must be submitted to CCDDR 

in writing with the program funding application.   

ii. Each audit exception request will be considered on a case-

by-case basis, and each consideration will be made based 

on the funding application circumstances. 

iii. If a waiver is approved, the exempted agency shall submit 

year-end financial statements or program specific financial 



 

 Page 17 of 17 
KC01DOCS\1237450.2 

statements signed by their board treasurer, Certified Public 

Accountant, or authorized designee.   

F. Any modifications or changes to the strategic plan, Bylaws, Articles of 

Incorporation, policies, and procedures adopted by the agency during the term 

identified in the funding agreement must be submitted to CCDDR. 

G. Agencies will be required to comply with all terms and conditions set forth in the 

funding agreement(s). 

H.  CCDDR reserves the right to conduct periodic site visits of funded programs, 

services, and/or supports.   

I. CCDDR may, at its own costs, procure the services of third parties to conduct 

assessments, audits, inspections, etc. of programs, services, supports, and/or 

facilities funded by CCDDR funds. 

 



 
CAMDEN COUNTY SB40 BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

RESOLUTION NO. 2018-18  
 
 

 

APPROVAL OF AMENDED POLICY #27 

 
WHEREAS, Sections 205.968-205.972 RSMo and subsequent passage by Camden Co. voters of the Senate 

Bill 40 enabling legislation in August of 1980 allows for the business, property, affairs, administrative 

control, and management to rest solely with the Camden County SB40 Board of Directors (dba Camden 

County Developmental Disability Resources). 

 

WHEREAS, the Camden County SB 40 Board (dba Camden County Developmental Disability Resources) 

reviews, amends, and appeals its existing Bylaws, policies, plans, manuals, and job descriptions and 

creates new Bylaws, policies, plans, manuals, and job descriptions as needed to remain effective in its 

Agency administration and remain compliant with regulatory statutes. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: 

 

1.  That the Camden County Senate Bill 40 Board (dba Camden County Developmental Disability 

Resources), hereafter referred to as the “Board”, hereby acknowledges the need to amend Policy #27, 

Investment of Board Funds. 

 

2.  That the Board hereby amends and adopts Policy #27 (Attachment “A” hereto) as presented. 

 

3.  A quorum has been established for vote on this resolution, this resolution has been approved by a 

majority Board vote as defined in the Board bylaws, and this resolution shall remain in effect until 

otherwise amended or changed. 

 

 

 

 

_________________________________________                    ___________________________ 

Chairman                                                                              Date 

 

 

_________________________________________                    ___________________________ 

Secretary, Vice Chairman, or Treasurer                             Date 



Attachment “A” to Resolution 

2018-18 
 

 

 

 

 



Page 1 of 9 
 

 

PURPOSE: 

 
All funds of Camden County Developmental Disability Resources (CCDDR) are held by the 
board in a fiduciary capacity. Therefore, all restricted and unrestricted funds of the organization 
are held by the organization as a steward for the sake of carrying out CCDDR’s mission and 
objectives. The basic investment standards shall be those of a prudent investor as articulated in 
applicable state laws pertaining to political subdivisions of Missouri. The following instructions 
are to be understood and employed with that sense of stewardship in mind. Further, this 
investment policy is set forth in order that: 

 

• There is a clear understanding of responsibilities and objectives of the board, its 

delegates, and chosen investment counselors 

• The board will have a basis for evaluating the investment performance of each of 

the organization’s investment funds 

 
POLICY: 

 

I. Scope 
 

This policy applies to the investment of all operating funds of the Camden County Senate Bill 

40 Board, dba Camden County Developmental Disability Resources (CCDDR). 

 

A. Pooling of Funds 
 
In an effort to maximize account holdings and investment earnings, investment income 
will be allocated to various fund accounts based on their intended purpose and in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. 
 

B. External Management of Funds 
 
Investment through external programs, facilities and professionals operating in a manner 
consistent with this policy will constitute compliance. 

 

II. General Objectives 
 

The primary objectives, in priority, of investments activities shall be safety, liquidity, and 

yield: 

Policy Number: 

27 

Effective: October 20, 2008 

Revised: April 19, 2010, September 17, 2012, 

October 16, 2017, May 21, 2018 

 

Subject: Investment of Board Funds 

 



Page 2 of 9 
 

A. Safety 

 

Safety of principal is the foremost objective of the investment program.  Investments 

shall be undertaken in a manner that seeks to ensure the preservation of capital in the 

overall portfolio.  The objective will be to mitigate credit risk and interest rate risk. 

 

1. Credit Risk 

 

CCDDR will minimize credit risk, the risk of loss due to the failure of the security 

issuer or backer, by: 

 

• Pre-qualifying the financial institutions, broker/dealers, intermediaries, and 

advisors with which CCDDR will do business 

• Diversifying the portfolio so that potential losses on individual securities will be 

minimized 

 

2. Interest Rate Risk 
 

CCDDR will minimize the risk that the market value of securities in the portfolio will 
fall due to changes in general interest rates, by: 

 

• Structuring the investment portfolio so that securities mature to meet cash 

requirements for ongoing operations, thereby avoiding the need to sell securities 

on the open market prior to maturity 

• Investing operating funds primarily in shorter-term securities 

 

B. Liquidity 
 
The investment portfolio/fund accounts shall remain sufficiently liquid to meet all 
operating requirements that may be reasonably anticipated.  This is accomplished by 
structuring the portfolio/fund accounts so that securities mature concurrent with cash 
needs to meet anticipated demands (static liquidity).  Furthermore, since all possible cash 
demands cannot be anticipated, the portfolio/fund accounts should consist largely of 
securities with active secondary or resale markets (dynamic liquidity).  A portion of the 
portfolio/fund accounts also may be placed in bank deposits or repurchase agreements 
that offer same-day liquidity for short-term funds. 

 

C. Yield 

 
The investment portfolio/fund accounts shall be designed with the objective of attaining 
a market rate of return throughout budgetary and economic cycles, taking into account 
the investment risk constraints, and liquidity needs. Return on investment is of secondary 
importance compared to the safety and liquidity objectives described above.  The core of 
investments is limited to relatively low risk securities in anticipation of earning a fair 
return relative to the risk being assumed. Securities shall not be sold prior to maturity 
with the following exceptions: 



Page 3 of 9 
 

• A security with declining credit may be sold early to minimize loss of principal 

• A security swap would improve the quality, yield, or target duration in the 

portfolio 

• Liquidity needs of the portfolio require that the security be sold 

 

III. Standards of Care 

 

A. Prudence 

 

The standard of care to be used by investment officials shall be the “prudent person” 

standard and shall be applied in the context of managing an overall portfolio/fund 

accounts.  Investment officers acting in accordance with written procedures and this 

investment policy and exercising due diligence shall be relieved of personal liability for 

an individual security’s credit risk or market price changes, provided deviations from 

expectations are reported in a timely fashion to the governing body and the liquidity and 

the sale of securities are carried out in accordance with the terms of this policy. 

 

Investments shall be made with judgment and care, under circumstances then prevailing, 

which persons of prudence, discretion and intelligence exercise in the management of 

their own affairs, not for speculation, but for investment, considering the probable safety 

of their capital as well as the probable income to be derived. 

 

B. Ethics and Conflicts of Interest 

 

Officers and employees involved in the investment process shall refrain from personal 

business activity that could conflict with the proper execution and management of the 

investment program, or that could impair their ability to make impartial decisions.   

CCDDR employees, board members, and investment officials shall disclose any material 

interests in financial institutions with which they conduct business.  They shall further 

disclose any personal financial/investment positions that could be related to the 

performance of the investment portfolio/fund accounts. Employees and officers shall 

refrain from undertaking personal investment transactions with the same individual with 

which business is conducted on behalf of CCDDR. 

C. Delegation of Authority 
 

Authority to manage the investment program is granted to the CCDDR Executive 
Director (hereinafter referred to as the Investment Officer) in consultation with an 
Investment Advisor employed at a local financial institution.   Responsibility for the 
operation of the investment program is hereby delegated to the investment officer, who 
shall act in accordance with the established written procedures and internal controls for 
the operation of the investment program consistent with this Investment Policy, 
Financial Management Practices Policy, and the CCDDR Bylaws.  Procedures should 
include references to: safekeeping, delivery vs. payment, investment accounting, 
repurchase agreements, wire transfer agreements, and collateral/depository agreements.   



Page 4 of 9 
 

No person may engage in an investment transaction except as provided under the terms 
of this policy and the procedures established by the investment officer.   The investment 
officer shall be responsible for all transactions undertaken and shall establish a system of 
controls to regulate the activities of subordinate officials. 

 

IV. Investment Transactions 

 

A. Authorized Financial Dealers and Institutions 

 

Federally insured banks, credit unions, and other financial institutions are considered 

acceptable financial dealers and institutions.   In the event Federally insured banks, credit 

unions, or other financial institutions are not intended to be used for investment 

purposes, a list of financial institutions, which are authorized to conduct and provide 

investment transactions and approved by the governing body, will be generated and 

maintained.   In addition, a list of approved security broker/dealers selected by 

creditworthiness as determined by the investment officer and approved by the governing 

body will be generated and maintained.  These may include “primary” dealers or regional 

dealers that qualify under Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) Rule 15C3-1 

(uniform net capital rule). 

 

All financial institutions and broker/dealers who desire to become qualified for 

investment transactions must supply the following as appropriate: 

 

• Audited financial statements 

• Proof of National Association of Securities Dealers (NASD) certification 

• Proof of state registration 

• Completed broker/dealer questionnaire 

• Certification of having read and understood and agreeing to comply with the 

CCDDR investment policy. 

 

An annual review of the financial condition and registration of qualified financial 

institutions and broker/dealers will be conducted by the investment officer. 
 

B. Internal Controls 

 

The investment officer is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control 

structure that will be reviewed annually with CCDDR’s independent auditor. The internal 

control structure shall be designed to ensure that the assets of CCDDR are protected from 

loss, theft or misuse and to provide reasonable assurance that these objectives are met.  

The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that (1) the cost of control should not 

exceed the benefits likely to be derived and (2) the valuation of costs and benefits require 

estimates and judgments by management. 

 

The internal controls shall address the following points: 

 

• Control of collusion. 



Page 5 of 9 
 

• Separation of transaction authority from accounting and record keeping. 

• Custodial safekeeping. 

• Avoidance of physical delivery securities. 

• Clear delegation of authority to subordinate staff members. 

• Written confirmation of transactions for investments and wire transfers. 

• Development of a wire transfer agreement with the lead bank and third party 

custodian. 

 

C. Delivery vs. Payment 
 

All trades where applicable will be executed by delivery vs. payment (DVP) to ensure 
that securities are deposited in eligible financial institutions prior to the release of funds.  
All securities shall be perfected in the name or for the account of CCDDR and shall be 
held by a third-party custodian as evidenced by safekeeping receipts. 

 

V. Suitable and Authorized Investments 

 

A. Investment Types 

 

In accordance with and subject to restrictions imposed by current statutes, the following 

list represents the entire range of investments that CCDDR will consider and which shall 

be authorized for the investments of funds by CCDDR. 

 

1. United States Treasury Securities.  CCDDR may invest in obligations of the United 

States government for which the full faith and credit of the United States are pledged 

for the payment of principal and interest. 

 

2. United States Agency Securities. CCDDR may invest in obligations issued or 

guaranteed by any agency of the United States Government as described in V. (2). 

 

3. Repurchase Agreements. CCDDR may invest in contractual agreements between 

CCDDR and commercial banks or primary government securities dealers.  The 

purchaser in a repurchase agreement (repo) enters into a contractual agreement to 

purchase U.S. Treasury and government agency securities while simultaneously 

agreeing to resell the securities at predetermined dates and prices. 

 

4. Collateralized Public Deposits (Certificates of Deposit). Instruments issued by 

financial institutions which state that specified sums have been deposited for 

specified periods of time and at specified rates of interest.  The certificates of deposit 

are required to be backed by acceptable collateral securities as dictated by State 

statute. 

 

5. Bankers’ Acceptances.   Time drafts drawn on and accepted by a commercial bank, 

otherwise known as bankers’ acceptances. CCDDR may invest in bankers’ 

acceptances issued by domestic commercial banks possessing the highest rating 

issued by Moody’s Investor Services, Inc. or Standard and Poor’s Corporation. 



Page 6 of 9 
 

 

6. Commercial Paper.  CCDDR may invest in commercial paper issued by domestic 

corporations, which has received the highest rating issued by Moody’s Investor 

Services, Inc.  or Standard and Poor’s Corporation.    Eligible paper is further limited 

to issuing corporations that have total commercial paper program size in excess of 

five hundred million dollars ($500,000,000). 

 

7. Money Market, Negotiable Order of Withdrawal (NOW) and Other Depositary 

Accounts.   CCDDR may invest in money market, NOW and other depositary 

accounts at Federally insured banks, credit unions, and other financial institutions as 

allowed by Federal, state and local law.   Accounts are required to be backed by 

acceptable collateral securities as dictated by statutes. 
 

B. Security Selection 

 

The following list represents the entire range of United States Agency Securities that 

CCDDR will consider and which shall be authorized for the investment of funds by 

CCDDR.  Additionally, the following definitions and guidelines should be used in 

purchasing the instruments: 

 

1. U.S. Govt. Agency Coupon and Zero Coupon Securities.  Bullet coupon bonds 

with no embedded options. 

 

2. U.S. Govt. Agency Discount Notes.  Purchased at a discount with maximum 

maturities of one (1) year. 

 

3. U.S. Govt. Agency Callable Securities. Restricted to securities callable at par 

only with final maturities of five (5) years. 

 

4. U.S. Govt. Agency Step-Up Securities.   The coupon rate is fixed for an initial 

term.    At coupon date, the coupon rate rises to a new, higher fixed term. 

Restricted to securities with final maturities of five (5) years. 

 

5. U.S. Govt. Agency Floating Rate Securities.  The coupon rate floats off one index. 

Restricted to coupons with no interim caps that reset at least quarterly. 

 
6. U.S.  Govt.  Mortgage Backed Securities. Restricted to securities with final 

maturities of five (5) years. 
 

C. Investment Restrictions and Prohibited Transactions 

 

To provide for the safety and liquidity of CCDDR’s funds, the investment portfolio will 

be subject to the following restrictions: 

 

1. Borrowing for investment purposes (“Leverage”) is prohibited. 

 



Page 7 of 9 
 

2. Instruments known as Structured Notes (e.g. inverse floaters, leveraged floaters, and 

equity-linked securities) are not permitted.  Investment in any instrument, which is 

commonly considered a “derivative” instrument (e.g. options, futures, swaps, caps, 

floors, and collars), is prohibited. 

 

3. Contracting to sell securities not yet acquired in order to purchase other securities for 

purposes of speculating on developments or trends in the market is prohibited. 

 

4. No more than 5% of the total market value of the portfolio may be invested in 

bankers’ acceptances issued by any one commercial bank and no more than 5% of 

the total market value of the portfolio may be invested in commercial paper of any 

one issuer. 

 

D. Collateralization 

 

Collateralization will be required on three types of investments:  certificates of deposit, 

money market accounts, and repurchase agreements.  The market value (including 

accrued interest) of the collateral should be at least 100%. 

 

For certificates of deposit, the market value of collateral must be at least 100% or greater 

of the amount of certificates of deposits plus demand deposits with the depository, less 

the amount, if any, which is insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, or the 

National Credit Unions Share Insurance Fund. 

 

All securities, which serve as collateral against the deposits of a depository institution, 

must be safe-kept at a non-affiliated custodial facility. Depository institutions pledging 

collateral against deposits must, in conjunction with the custodial agent, furnish the 

necessary custodial receipts within five business days from the settlement date. 

 

CCDDR shall have a depositary contract and pledge agreement with each safekeeping 

bank that will comply with the Financial Institutions, Reform, Recovery, and 

Enforcement Act of 1989 (FIRREA).  This will ensure that CCDDR’s security interest in 

collateral pledged to secure deposits is enforceable against the receiver of a failed 

financial institution. 

 

E. Repurchase Agreements 

 

The securities for which repurchase agreements will be transacted will be limited to U.S. 

Treasury and government agency securities that are eligible to be delivered via the 

Federal Reserve's Fedwire book entry system.  Securities will be delivered to CCDDR’s 

designated Custodial Agent.  Funds and securities will be transferred on a delivery vs. 

payment basis. 

 

 

 

 



Page 8 of 9 
 

VI. Investment Parameters 

 

A. Diversification 

 

The investments shall be diversified to minimize the risk of loss resulting from over 

concentration of assets in specific maturity, specific issuer, or specific class of securities.  

Diversification strategies shall be established and periodically reviewed. At a minimum, 

diversification standards by security type and issuer shall be: 

 

1. U.S treasuries and securities having principal and/or interest 

guaranteed by the U.S. government…………………………….100% 

2. Collateralized time and demand deposit………………………..100% 

3. U.S. Government agencies, and government  

sponsored  enterprises…………………………..........................no more than 60%  

4. Collateralized repurchase agreements………………………….50% 

5. U.S. Government agency callable securities……………………no more than 30%  

6. Commercial Paper ………………………………………………no more than 30%  

7. Bankers’ Acceptances…………………………………………...no more than 30% 

 

B. Maximum Maturities 

 

To the extent possible, CCDDR shall attempt to match its investments with anticipated 

cash flow requirements. Investments in bankers’ acceptances and commercial paper shall 

mature and become payable not more than one hundred eighty days (180) from the date 

of purchase. All other investments shall mature and become payable not more than five 

(5) years from the date of purchase. CCDDR shall adopt weighted average maturity 

limitations that should not exceed three (3) years and is consistent with the investment 

objectives. 

 

Because of inherent difficulties in accurately forecasting cash flow requirements, a 

portion of the portfolio should be continuously invested in readily available funds such as 

in bank deposits or overnight repurchase agreements to ensure that appropriate liquidity is 

maintained to meet ongoing obligations. 

 

VII. Reporting 

 

A. Methods 

 

The investment officer shall prepare an investment report at least quarterly, including 

a management summary that provides an analysis of the status of the current investment 

portfolio and transactions made over the last quarter.  This management summary will be 

prepared in a manner that will allow CCDDR to ascertain whether investment activities 

during the reporting period have conformed to the investment policy.  The report should 

be provided to the governing body of CCDDR.  The report will include the following: 

 

• Listing of individual securities held at the end of the reporting period. 



Page 9 of 9 
 

• Realized   and   unrealized   gains   or   losses   resulting   from   appreciation   or 

depreciation by listing the cost and market value of securities over one-year duration 

(in accordance with Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) 31 

requirements). [Note, this is only required annually]. 

• Average weighted yield to maturity of portfolio on investments as compared to 

applicable benchmarks. 

• Listing of investment by maturity date. 

• Percentage of the total portfolio which each type of investment represents. 

 

B. Performance Standards 

 

The investment portfolio will be managed in accordance with the parameters specified 

within this policy.  The portfolio should obtain a market average rate of return during a 

market/economic environment of stable interest rates.  A series of appropriate 

benchmarks may be established against which portfolio performance shall be compared 

on a regular basis. 

 

Commercial paper and bankers’ acceptances must be reviewed monthly to determine if 

the rating level has changed.  The commercial paper and bankers’ acceptances should be 

reviewed for possible sale if the securities are downgraded below the minimum 

acceptable rating levels. 

 

C. Marking to Market 

 

The market value of the portfolio shall be calculated at least quarterly and a statement of 

the market value of the portfolio shall be issued at least annually to the governing body of 

CCDDR.  This will ensure that review of the investment portfolio, in terms of value and 

price volatility, has been performed. 

 

VIII. Policy Considerations 

 

A. Exemption 

 

Any investment currently held that does not meet the guidelines of this policy shall be 

exempt from the requirements of this policy.  At maturity or liquidation, such monies 

shall be reinvested only as provided by this policy. 

 

B. Adoption 

 

This policy shall be adopted by resolution of CCDDR’s governing body.  The policy shall 

be reviewed annually by the investment officer and recommended changes will be 

presented to the governing body for consideration. 
 
 
REFERENCES: 

 

• Section 30.950 RSMo 



 
CAMDEN COUNTY SB40 BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

RESOLUTION NO. 2018-19  
 
 

 

APPROVAL OF AMENDED POLICY #31 

 
WHEREAS, Sections 205.968-205.972 RSMo and subsequent passage by Camden Co. voters of the Senate 

Bill 40 enabling legislation in August of 1980 allows for the business, property, affairs, administrative 

control, and management to rest solely with the Camden County SB40 Board of Directors (dba Camden 

County Developmental Disability Resources). 

 

WHEREAS, the Camden County SB 40 Board (dba Camden County Developmental Disability Resources) 

reviews, amends, and appeals its existing Bylaws, policies, plans, manuals, and job descriptions and 

creates new Bylaws, policies, plans, manuals, and job descriptions as needed to remain effective in its 

Agency administration and remain compliant with regulatory statutes. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: 

 

1.  That the Camden County Senate Bill 40 Board (dba Camden County Developmental Disability 

Resources), hereafter referred to as the “Board”, hereby acknowledges the need to amend Policy #31, 

Procurement. 

 

2.  That the Board hereby amends and adopts Policy #31 (Attachment “A” hereto) as presented. 

 

3.  A quorum has been established for vote on this resolution, this resolution has been approved by a 

majority Board vote as defined in the Board bylaws, and this resolution shall remain in effect until 

otherwise amended or changed. 

 

 

 

 

_________________________________________                    ___________________________ 

Chairman                                                                              Date 

 

 

_________________________________________                    ___________________________ 

Secretary, Vice Chairman, or Treasurer                             Date 



Attachment “A” to Resolution 

2018-19 
 

 

 

 

 



Page 1 of 3 
 

 

 
 
PURPOSE: 

 

It is the policy of Camden County Developmental Disability Resources (CCDDR) to implement 

sound procurement management practices that allow for competitive solicitations and fair 

determinations when awarding business services, products, and contracts to individuals or 

companies that wish to do business with CCDDR. All procurement management practices of the 

board shall comply with applicable state and federal laws. 

 
POLICY: 
 

I. Procurement Process 

 

The Procurement Procedure shall identify the process and descriptions of the process in which the 

Procurement Policy shall be applied.  All conditions of the Procurement Policy, Procurement 

Procedure, and procurement activities shall adhere to and comply with Policy #17, Financial 

Management Practices, and shall not conflict with any other Board policy or its Bylaws. The 

Board shall reserve the right to utilize existing State or County contracts for specific products or 

services through a resolution if the Board deems it necessary.  All records of procurement 

activities shall be kept on file at CCDDR for the prescribed time allotted by law. 
 
 

II. Procurement Officer 

 

The Executive Director shall appoint a designated Procurement Officer for procuring products or 

services on behalf of CCDDR.  In the absence of an appointed Procurement Officer, the 

Executive Director shall serve as the Procurement Officer. 
 
 

III. Procurement Guidelines 

 

It is not necessary to obtain bids or proposals on the purchase of a product or service from the 

same person or business in the amount of $4,500 or less within a 90-day period. For the purchase 

of a product or service from the same person or business costing more than $4,500 and less than 

$6,000 within a 90-day period, the designated Procurement Officer should make a legitimate 

attempt to obtain three bids or proposals from three potential sources; however, if three bids or 

proposals cannot be obtained from three potential sources, the Procurement Officer shall provide 

a written explanation as to why three bids or proposals could not be obtained and must receive 

written authorization from the Executive Director before procuring the products or services.  

Faxed or emailed bids and proposals or quotes directly from a potential source’s website or 

Policy Number:  

31 

Effective:  September 17, 2012 

Revised:  August 25, 2014, February 26, 2018, 

May 21, 2018 

 

Subject: Procurement 
  
 



Page 2 of 3 
 

catalog may be obtained.  The Executive Director can authorize purchases base on cost, quality, 

and other factors related to the purchases. 

 

A formal competitive bid process shall be used for the purchase of a product or service $6,000 or 

higher from the same person or business within a 90-day period. A Request for Proposals (RFP) 

or Notice of Funding Available (NOFA) shall be published in a local newspaper and shall be 

posted on the CCDDR website.  The RFP OR NOFA can also be submitted directly to potential 

sources; however, direct submissions must be made to at least three potential sources.  Bidders 

shall be given the guidelines for their responses contained within the RFP OR NOFA and an 

appropriate amount of time in which to develop and submit a proposal or quote based on the 

requirements contained in the RFP OR NOFA.  The responses shall be sealed and shall remain 

sealed until the deadline for the RFP OR NOFA has passed.  All responding parties shall be 

notified of the date for opening the sealed responses. Sealed responses shall be opened during a 

regularly scheduled CCDDR Board meeting.  

 

The Board may waive the requirement of competitive bids where there is a single feasible source 

for the purchase, and it makes the determination in writing and enters it in the Board meeting 

minutes.  A “single feasible source” exists when: 

 

1. Supplies are proprietary and only available from the manufacturer or a single distributor. 

2. Based on past procurement experience, it is determined that only one distributor services 

the region in which the supplies are needed. 

3. Supplies are available at a discount from a single distributor for a limited period of time. 

 

When a single feasible source is to be procured, the Board shall post notice of the proposed 

purchase if between $3,000 and $4,999.  If the single feasible source purchase is $5,000 or more, 

the Board shall post notice and advertise intent of the purchase in the local newspaper.  Posted 

notices for single feasible source purchases shall include a paper notice posted on the primary 

place of business and on the CCDDR website.  Notices posted and intents advertised for single 

feasible source procurement shall be done at least 10 days prior to purchase. 

 

Supports and/or services for individuals served by CCDDR and paid by the Board through 

Medicaid Waiver agreements or other contracts with the Department of Mental Health, Division 

of Developmental Disabilities, shall be done in accordance with the guidelines established within 

those agreements or contracts.  Supports and/or services procured and paid solely or partially by 

the Board specifically for individuals served by CCDDR shall be done in a manner which 

represents the health, safety, and best interests of the individuals being served. 
 

IV. Awards for Services and Products 

 

A panel of CCDDR representatives will be assigned to review all responses before an approved 

respondent is selected.  CCDDR may require respondents to provide additional assurances, 

insurances, bonds, and supplementary information during the procurement process.  If there is 

only one respondent to an RFP OR NOFA, a second solicitation may or may not be offered.  All 

proposals may be rejected and new solicitations issued.  Awards and contracts for RFP’s OR 

NOFA’s shall not be solely based on price.  Other considerations will be utilized based on the 

premise of the services and/or products contained within the RFP OR NOFA.  Respondent 

references, respondent experience, respondent qualifications, proposal presentation, proposal 



Page 3 of 3 
 

accuracy, proposal clarity, timelines for project completion, quality of proposed goods/services, 

warranties, and other factors related to the product and/or service shall be considered during the 

procurement process.  Preference shall be applied to those respondents who employ Camden 

County residents with developmental disabilities and may be part of the requirements contained 

within the RFP OR NOFA.  All other preferences and guidelines identified in applicable Federal, 

state, and local law shall be recognized. 

 

V. Banking Services 

 

The Board shall issue an RFP and receive proposals from banking corporations or associations to 

be depositaries of funds every four years, with an option to rebid in odd numbered years.  

Proposals are to be sealed, include the rate of interest for the specified period in the RFP, and 

must include a certified check for not less than $2,500 as a guaranty of good faith on the part of 

the respondent to provide the required security per RSMo 110.010.  If there are no responses, the 

Board can choose any bank in the county or adjoining counties with interest of not less than 1.5%. 

 

VI. Periodic Review of Existing Products or Services 

 

CCDDR shall periodically review the cost of products and/or services utilized on an ongoing 

basis and previously awarded through the procurement process.  If desired or necessary, CCDDR 

may seek to solicit new proposals for these products and/or services.  In such cases, CCDDR 

shall follow the Procurement Guidelines in Section III.      

 

VII. Emergency Procurement 

 

CCDDR may waive all procurement requirements when there has been an “Emergency 

Declaration” issued by the Executive Director in conjunction with the approval of the Board 

Chairman.  If the Board Chairman is unavailable, the Executive Director shall seek the approval 

from the Board Vice Chairman.  If the Chairman and Vice Chairman are unavailable, the 

Executive Director shall seek approval from no less than two Board members.  If the Executive 

Director is not available, any two members of the board in conjunction with the Chairman or Vice 

Chairman (if the Chairman is unavailable) can issue an “Emergency Declaration”.  An 

“Emergency Declaration” can be issued if it has been determined that there exists a threat to life, 

property, public health, or public safety; when immediate expenditure is necessary in order to 

protect against loss of or damage to CCDDR property; if a legal matter prompts immediate 

attention or response; in order to prevent or minimize serious disruption in CCDDR services; or 

to ensure the integrity of CCDDR records. Emergency procurements shall be made with as much 

competition as is practicable under the circumstances. A detailed report and accounting of the 

“Emergency Declaration” shall be provided to the Board for review at the next regularly 

scheduled Board meeting or at a convened emergency Board meeting (if necessary). 

 

 

REFERENCES: 
 

• Chapter 50, Revised MO Statutes 
• Chapter 34, Revised MO Statutes 
• Chapter 110, Revised MO Statutes 



 
CAMDEN COUNTY SB40 BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

RESOLUTION NO. 2018-20  
 
 

Helping to Meet the Challenges of Developmental Disabilities 

 

RECOGNITION OF OATS, INC. AS SINGLE FEASIBLE SOURCE FOR PUBLIC TRANSIT SERVICES 

 
WHEREAS, Sections 205.968-205.972 RSMo and subsequent passage by Camden Co. voters of the Senate 

Bill 40 enabling legislation in August of 1980 allows for the business, property, affairs, administrative 

control, and management to rest solely with the Camden County SB40 Board of Directors (dba Camden 

County Developmental Disability Resources). 

 

WHEREAS, the Camden County SB 40 Board may purchase services from service providers for Camden 

County clients when warranted and deemed necessary. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: 

 

1.  That the Camden County Senate Bill 40 Board (dba Camden County Developmental Disability 

Resources), hereafter referred to as the “Board”, acknowledges the need to utilize and access a public 

transit system for the most affordable transportation services for employment purposes and other 

community or daily living activities for CCDDR clients. 

2.  That the Board has issued public requests for I/DD direct and community inclusive supports and 

services and has determined, through first-hand knowledge, research and experience, that OATS, Inc. 

operates the only current public transit system in Camden County and surrounding counties which 

provides Federally and state subsidized funding for transportation services accessible by the general public 

(see Attachment “A” hereto for information related to OATS, Inc.), offering the least expensive and most 

accommodable service benefit for CCDDR clients. 

3.  That the Board recognizes OATS, Inc. as a single feasible source purchase for public transit and other 

related transportation services; the Board shall post notice and advertise intent of funding expanded public 

transit and other related transportation services in the local newspaper; the Board shall post notices for 

single feasible source purchases for community inclusive, public transit and other related transportation 

services for its clients at CCDDR’s Camdenton office, CCDDR’s Osage Beach office and on the CCDDR 

website; notices posted and intents advertised for this single feasible source procurement shall be done at 

least 10 days prior to signing and executing Memorandums of Understanding (MOU’s), service contracts or 

other similar instruments with OATS, Inc. 

4.  A quorum has been established for vote on this resolution, this resolution has been approved by a 

majority Board vote as defined in the Board bylaws, and this resolution shall remain in effect until 

otherwise amended or changed.  

 

 

 
_________________________________________                    ___________________________ 

Chairman                                                                              Date 

 

 

_________________________________________                    ___________________________ 

Secretary, Vice Chairman, or Treasurer                             Date 
 

 



Attachment “A” to 

Resolution 2018-20 



OATS, Inc. 
 

































05/16/2018

Integrated Transportation
1041 Peruque Crossing Cou
Suite A                  
O'Fallon      MO 63366-2362

(636) 561-0048

National Interstate Ins. 

OATS, INC
2501 Maguire Blvd., Ste .101
Columbia MO 65201-    

18058

ITR, Inc.

rbaumann@itr-inc.net

0001 0001

(636) 625-0909

X
X

X

EGL1000149-02A 07/01/201707/01/2018 2,000,000
100,000

5,000
2,000,000
2,000,000
2,000,000

Abuse & Molestation $1M/$1M

X
EAL1000149-02A 07/01/201707/01/2018 2,000,000

Directors & Officers Liab 1,000,000
EPLI 1,000,000
Fiduciary Liability 1,000,000

AI 002635

5816 Osage Beach Parkway, Suite 108
Osage Beach MO 65065-    

Camden County SB40 Board

(   )   -    Fax:

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?

INSR ADDL SUBR
LTR INSD WVD

DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

PRODUCER CONTACT
NAME:

FAXPHONE
(A/C, No):(A/C, No, Ext):

E-MAIL
ADDRESS:

INSURER A :

INSURED INSURER B :

INSURER C :

INSURER D :

INSURER E :

INSURER F :

POLICY NUMBER
POLICY EFF POLICY EXP

TYPE OF INSURANCE LIMITS(MM/DD/YYYY) (MM/DD/YYYY)

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES  (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

EACH OCCURRENCE $
DAMAGE TO RENTED

CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR $PREMISES (Ea occurrence)

MED EXP (Any one person) $

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $

PRO-
POLICY LOC PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG $JECT

OTHER: $

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT $
(Ea accident)

BODILY INJURY (Per person) $ANY AUTO

ALL OWNED SCHEDULED BODILY INJURY (Per accident) $
AUTOS AUTOS

HIRED AUTOS
NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE $
AUTOS (Per accident)

$

OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE $

CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $

DED RETENTION $ $

PER OTH-
STATUTE ER

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $
If yes, describe under

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT $DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

Y / N

N / A

(Mandatory in NH)

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED.  NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW.  THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT:  If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed.  If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement.  A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the
certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

© 1988-2014 ACORD CORPORATION.  All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORDACORD 25 (2014/01)

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE



Page 1 of 6 
 

Bylaws	of	
	

 
 
 

OATS	Mission:				Enhancing	quality	of	life	by	providing		
safe,	caring	&	reliable	transportation	services.	

	
 

Article	I	–	Name	and	Purpose	
 
1. The name of the corporation shall be OATS, Incorporated. 
 
2. The  primary  purpose  of  the  corporation  is  to  provide  transportation  and  related  services  to 

individuals needing such services. 
 
3. OATS is a not‐for‐profit, non‐sectarian corporation. 

 
Article	II	–	Description	and	Qualifications	of	Board	of	Directors	

 
1. The Board of Directors is the governing body of OATS. The Board is responsible for overall policy and 

direction  of  the  corporation,  and  delegates  responsibility  of  day‐to‐day  operations  to  staff  and 
committees.  

 
2. The Board of Directors may have up to 16, but no fewer than 12 members. There shall be at least 

one (1) director from each of the service regions served by the corporation. The board receives no 
compensation other than reasonable expenses. 

 
3. Board members shall be sought who reflect the qualifications and diversity determined by the Board 

in its policies and who have a vested interest in public transportation.  
 
4. Any individual who has served as an OATS volunteer or ridden an OATS vehicle at least once during 

the calendar year of a  regular election  is eligible  to  serve as a member of  the Board of Directors, 
with the following exceptions: 

 
a) No employee or immediate family member of an employee of OATS, Incorporated is eligible to 

serve on the Board of Directors. 
 
b) No  person  who  has  not  consented  to  serve  if  elected  is  eligible  to  serve  on  the  Board  of 

Directors. 
 
c) No person who was employed by OATS  in  the  three  years prior  to  serving on  the Board.  If  a 

former OATS employee, they must have left OATS employment in good standing. 
 



Page 2 of 6 
 

5. Consultants  may  be  appointed  by  Board  of  Directors  from  among  persons  who  have  special 
expertise in the conduct of the affairs of the corporation.  Nominees for such appointments shall be 
selected by the President. 

 
 

Article	III	–	Election	and	Appointment	of	Board	of	Directors	
 
1. Election of Board members is held every other year in odd numbered years.  

 
2. During an election year, there shall be a Nominating Committee comprised of the Vice Secretary and 

three (3) to five (5) members of the Board of Directors. 
 

3. The Nominating Committee shall evaluate the eligibility, experience and skills of candidates for the 
Board of Directors. 
 

4. The Nominating Committee shall identify individuals qualified to become Board members, select or 
recommend director nominees, and recommend to the Board the slate of candidates for approval of 
the full Board at the last meeting of the year. 
 

5. The term of office of each Director is four (4) calendar years beginning January 1. Directors may be 
elected or appointed for successive terms.  There is no limit on the number of terms a director may 
serve. 
 

6. Three  (3)  successive absences or a  cumulative  total of  five  (5) absences during  the  term of office 
from the regularly scheduled meetings of the Board by any member of the Board of Directors shall 
be cause for the Board to consider whether a vacancy has been created on the Board.  Pursuant to 
Section  355.346  RSMo.,  removal  of  a  director  for  this  reason  requires  the  vote  of  a  majority  of 
directors then in office. 
 

7. A vacancy for an unexpired term on the Board of Directors shall be filled through appointment by 
the President in consultation with the Board of Directors. 
 

8. Whenever  new  service  regions  are  added  in  the  interim  between  elections,  the  President,  in 
consultation with the Board of Directors, shall appoint at least one (1) interim Director from the new 
service region to serve until the next regular election. 
 

9. Directors  shall  be  installed  at  the  first  regular  Board  meeting  of  the  calendar  year,  except  that 
interim Directors from new service regions or to fill a vacancy shall be installed at the next regular 
Board meeting following their appointment. 

 

Article	IV	–	Duties	and	Functions	of	the	Board	of	Directors	
 
The Board of Directors shall have the authority to: 
 
1. Exercise, within the provisions of the Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws of the corporation and not 

inconsistent with law, the powers of the corporation as set forth in Chapter 355, Revised Statutes of 
Missouri. 
 



Page 3 of 6 
 

2. Appoint  the  Executive  Director  and  delegate  to  the  Executive  Director  the  authority  and 
responsibility  to  adequately  staff  and  effectively  administer  the  affairs  of  the  corporation  in 
accordance with the policies and general guidelines adopted by the Board of Directors. 

3. Provide  for  annual  audit  for  the  financial  accounts of  the  corporation and an annual  report  to  its 
riders and the Secretary of State. 
 

4. Provide  for  the  adequate  bonding  of  the  officers,  employees,  and  authorized  volunteer 
representatives who handle the funds of the corporation. 
 

5. Prescribe general guidelines for and approve the organization of any committees of the corporation 
and delegate to the Executive Director for the general supervision of their activities. 

 

Article V – Election of Officers 
 

1. The  elected  officers  of  the  corporation  shall  be  the  President,  Vice  president  and 
Secretary/Treasurer.  There shall also be an appointed Vice Secretary. 

 
2. The President, Vice President and Secretary/Treasurer must be members of the Board of Directors. 
 
3. The Vice Secretary may be a member of OATS staff. 
 
4. Persons elected or appointed as officers shall be acquainted with the duties and functions of their 

offices. 
 
5. The Board of Directors shall elect officers,  including appointment of  the Vice Secretary, at  its  first 

regular meeting of each calendar year or  the  last meeting of  the preceding year.   No person may 
hold more than one (1) office. 

 
6. Officers’ term of office shall be for one (1) calendar year or until a successor is elected. 
 
7. An officer may succeed himself/herself. 
 
8. A vacancy occurring in an elective office shall be filled by the Board of Directors through a regular 

nominating procedure.  
 

Article	VI	–	Duties	and	Functions	of	Officers	
 
1.  Duties and Functions of the President 

a) The President shall preside at all meetings of the Board of Directors and may vote only to break 
a tie vote. 
 

b) The  President  shall  assure  that  there  will  be  coordination  of  efforts  in  all  the  work  of  the 
corporation. 

 
c) The  President  in  consultation  with  the  Executive  Director  shall  appoint  the  Executive 

Committee, standing committees, and special committees authorized by the Board of Directors.   
The  President  and  the  Executive  Director  shall  serve  as  an  ex‐officio  member  of  all  these 
committees, except all candidate selection committees. 



Page 4 of 6 
 

 
d) Appoint  a  Nominating  Committee  of  at  least  three  (3) members  from  among  the  continuing 

members of the Board of Directors to prepare a slate of officers to be elected by the Board of 
Directors at its last regular meeting of the calendar year to serve during the next calendar year. 

 
2. Duties and Functions of the Vice President 
 

The Vice President shall assume the duties and responsibilities of  the President in his/her absence 
or incapacity. 

 
3. Duties and Functions of the Secretary/Treasurer 
 

a) The Secretary/Treasurer shall keep the organization’s official roll of Board members and call the 
roll when it is required. 
 

b) The Secretary/Treasurer shall have on hand at each meeting a list of all existing committees and 
their names. 
 

c) The  Secretary/Treasurer  shall  sign,  or  cause  to  be  signed,  all  certified  copies  of  acts  of  the 
corporation. 
 

d) In  the  absence  of  the  President  and  Vice  President,  the  Secretary/Treasurer  shall  call  the 
meeting to order and act until the election of a President pro tem. 
 

e) The Secretary/Treasurer may, at his or her discretion, delegate the duties outlined in Section VI. 
3. a. and b. above to the Vice Secretary. 

 
f) The Secretary/Treasurer shall have supervision of the financial accounts of the corporation. 

 
4. Duties and Functions of the Vice Secretary 
 

a) The Vice Secretary shall keep accurate minutes and records of the meetings of the corporation 
and  of  the  Board  of  Directors  and  shall  be  responsible  for  authenticating  records  of  the 
corporation. 
 

b) The Vice Secretary shall make the minutes and records available to Board of Directors members 
upon request and to others as required by law. 
 

c) The Vice Secretary shall maintain record books  in which the Bylaws, and minutes are entered, 
with any amendments to these documents properly recorded, and have such books on hand at 
every meeting. 
 

d) The Vice Secretary shall send out notices of meetings, agendas and copies of minutes. 
 

e) The Vice Secretary shall act in the absence of the Secretary except the Vice Secretary shall have 
no voting rights. 

 

Article	VII	–	Committees	of	the	Board	



Page 5 of 6 
 

 
1. Committee Formation 

The  Board  may  create  committees  as  needed.  Such  committees  shall  have  their  full  scope  of 
authority designated in policy adopted by the Board. 

 
2. Executive Committee 

The Executive Committee shall consist of the current officers of the Board: President, Vice President 
and Secretary/Treasurer.  The purpose of the Executive Committee is to aid the Executive Director in 
making decisions in the interim between meetings of the Board.  The Executive Committee may not 
authorize  distributions  to  directors,  officers,  agents  or  employees  except  in  exchange  for  value 
received;  approve  or  recommend  dissolution,  merger,  or  disposition/encumbrance  of  all  or 
substantially all of  the corporation’s assets; elect, appoint or  remove directors or  fill vacancies on 
the board or its committees; or adopt, amend or repeal articles or bylaws.  All actions taken by the 
Executive Committee are subject to ultimate review and approval of the entire Board. 

 
3. Finance Committee 

The  Finance  Committee  is  responsible  for  reviewing  and  advising  the  Board  on  all  policy matters 
relating  to corporate  financial matters. Appointments are made  to  the Finance Committee by  the 
President  of  the  Board  on  an  annual  basis  for  the  ensuing  calendar  year.    The  Committee  shall 
consist of not less than two (2) Board members and may also include persons not on the Board of 
Directors.  The  Secretary/Treasurer  is  the  chair  of  the  Finance  Committee.  The  Finance  Director 
serves as the staff  representative to the Finance Committee, but other staff members could be  in 
attendance when specific policy matters are reviewed.  

 

Article	VIII	–	Director	and	Staff	
 
The Executive Director is hired by the Board. The Executive Director has day‐to‐day responsibilities for 
the corporation, including carrying out the corporation’s goals and policies. The Executive Director will 
attend all board meetings,  report on  the progress of  the organization, answer questions of  the board 
members and carry out the duties described in the job description. The board can designate other duties 
as necessary. 
 

Article	IV	–	Meetings	
 

1. The Board of Directors shall meet at least bi‐monthly.  Other meetings of the Board may be called by 
the President or by petition signed by one‐third of the Board Members.  Directors may participate in 
regular or special meetings of the Board of Directors through any means of communication by which 
all directors participating may simultaneously hear each other during the meeting. 

 
2. Notice of the date, time, and place, together with the principal  items of business of each meeting 

shall be given to the Board at least five (5) days before each meeting.  Notice may be either oral or 
written.    Oral  notice  may  be  conveyed  in  person  or  by  telephone  and  is  effective  when 
communicated.  Written notice is effective at the earliest of the following times: when received; five 
days  after  deposit  in  the mail  if mailed  certified  or  registered;  on  the  date  shown  on  the  return 
receipt  if mailed first class;  thirty days after mailing  if mailed by other  than first class, certified or 
registered. 

 



Page 6 of 6 
 

3. A quorum shall  consist of a majority of  the members of  the Board  in office  immediately before a 
meeting begins. 

 
4. Robert’s Rules or Order, Revised, shall govern the proceedings of the Board Meetings. 
 
5. All meetings of the corporation shall be open to the public.  Any exceptions will be made according 

to the provisions of RSMo Chapter 610, Sections .020, .021 and .022, or any other relevant statutes. 
 

Article	X	–	Conflicts	of	Interest	
 
Whenever a board member has a financial or personal interest in any matter coming before the board 
of directors, the board shall ensure that: 
 

a) The interest of such director is fully disclosed to the board of directors.  
 

b) No interested director may vote on the matter or be counted in determining the existence of a 
quorum at the meeting of the board of directors at which such matter is voted upon.  
 

c) The minutes of meetings at which such votes are taken shall record such disclosure, abstention, 
and rationale for approval. 

 
Article	XI	–	Amendments	

 
These Bylaws may be amended at any time by majority vote of the members of the Board of Directors. 

 

Article	XII	–	Fiscal	Year	
 
The fiscal year of the corporation shall be determined by the Board of Directors. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Adopted by the Board 5/23/17; effective 7/1/17. 



OATS Long‐Range Strategic Plan 2014‐2018  1 
 

 

Long‐Range Strategic Plan 2014 ‐ 2018  

OATS has identified 6 priorities that will be the focus of this 5-year strategic plan. Goals were 
developed to address the six priorities using strategies that utilize our strengths and tap into 
opportunities while keeping in mind the trends analyzed in the strategic planning report.  
 

 PRIORITY 1:  TECHNOLOGY 
IT should enhance our service – not drive it. It should enable us to operate more efficiently and 
save us time and money. 
 
Goal 1: Review current system to determine if adequately meeting needs – what is the ROI?  
Goal 2: Develop and issue RFP for IT infrastructure first quarter 2014 - Steve & Dorothy 
Goal 3: Ascertain what Staffing & Support is needed to maintain the system 
Goal 4: Develop Capital plan for Future Needs & Funding/upgrade all hardware & software 
 
 

 PRIORITY 2:  FUNDING  
We need to further diversify our funding sources and look for more sustainable sources.  Focus 
should be on increased local support and increased support from ridership. 
 
Goal 1: Increase Local Outreach (RPCs, city/county governments, etc.) Especially important if 
sales tax passes 
Goal 2: Obtain funding from all Senate Bill 40 Boards and all Senior Tax Boards. In counties 
where there is not a tax board, work with local agencies to start one. 
Goal 3: Increase rider contributions through better outreach, implementation of fares where 
viable, implementation of a Planned Giving Program 
Goal 4: Increase Service Agreements by 10% 
Goal 5: Train Administrative Staff on Budget and Financial Statements 
Goal 6: Obtain funding for capital such as equipment for technology, new and replacement 
vehicles and West Region Facility 
 
 

 PRIORITY 3:  FLEET  
We need to increase and  stabilize our capital funding and find new sources to offset reductions 
in FTA funding. Need to assure ongoing monitoring of maintenance both for safety and to 
contain costs. 
 
Goal 1: Seek alternative funding to augment federal funding for new and replacement vehicles 
Goal 2: Revise vehicle specifications to better meet our needs; backing cameras and onboard 
cameras are two items we want installed on all future new vehicles 
Goal 3: Established a Maintenance Committee to review OATS maintenance program to 
determine what changes need to be made to contain costs as we continue operating with an aging 
fleet due to reduced federal funding for replacement vehicles. 



OATS Long‐Range Strategic Plan 2014‐2018  2 
 

Goal 4: Due to costs and other issues, many of the environmentally friendly vehicles available 
are not viable to OATS at this time; however, as part of our long term goal much continue to 
research and seek out green initiatives. 
 

 PRIORITY 4:  SAFETY/TRAINING 
Safety is OATS number one priority and as a company we remain committed to assuring our 
drivers are given the proper training and tools to provide safe transportation. 
 
Goal 1:  Review Driver Training Program no less often than every 2 years to assure fresh and 
current and to determine if any new topics need to be added 
Goal 2: Explore online training options to limit amount of time watching videos at orientation or 
in drivers meetings so more focus can be had on interaction 
Goal 3: Review Safety Awards Program to see if effective and if not what changes need to be 
made 
Goal 4: Implement new Driver Manual in loose leaf format to allow for more frequent and 
efficient changes 
 
 

 PRIORITY 5:  EMPLOYEES 
OATS cannot accomplish any of its goals or fulfill its mission without a well trained and engaged 
staff. 
 
Goal 1: Develop Orientation Program for Office Staff to assure consistency in the message re: 
OATS, customer service, expectations, legal information, etc.  All office staff should be required 
to do a ride-along during probationary period.  
Goal 2: Reduce Turnover to below 20% 
Goal 3: Restructuring of Regions to assure adequate staffing 
Goal 4: Develop a Succession Plan 
Goal 5: Explore how to engage former employees who left in good standing 
Goal 6: Review salary structure for all positions. 
 
 

 PRIORITY 6:  VOLUNTEERS 
Volunteers have played an important role in OATS’s past and still have great value. But, in 
order to continue to have a role at OATS we must find new uses for their time and improve 
recruitment efforts. 
 
Goal 1: Restructure OATS Volunteer Program (rename to Regional Advocacy Committee; 
remove need for a committee in every county – where it works, fine, where it doesn’t, make it 
regional) 
Goal 2: Find new role for volunteers to play – outreach, advocacy, meetings with local officials, 
legislative outreach 
Goal 3: Develop a Board of Directors Succession Plan 
 
 
Adopted by the OATS Board of Directors    January 28, 2014 



ANNUAL REPORT 
~ Fiscal Year 2017 ~

(July 1, 2016 to June 30, 2017)

Awards & Recognition
• In August, 2016 OATS received the Transit Champions Award at the MO  
	 Public	Transit	Association	Meeting.
• In September, 2016 OATS celebrated its 45th Anniversary with over 800 in  
	 attendance.
• OATS was recognized by the Missouri Community Service Commission in  
	 2017	for	its	tireless	service	and	impact	on	Missouri	citizens.

Our Employees are OATS Greatest Asset!
• At	the	end	of	the	fiscal	year,	OATS	had	a	total	of	723	employees.
• Numerous	employees	participate	in	OATS	Wellness for Life program with  
	 a	variety	of	wellness	activities	&	challenges	held	throughout	the	year.
• A	total	of	75	employees	celebrated	milestone	anniversaries.

Safety
• Safety	continued	to	be	a	top	priority	for	OATS	with	one	preventable	
	 vehicular	accident	for	every	191,201	miles	of	exposure.
• Safe	Driver	Awards	were	earned	by	339	drivers-	a	combined	total	of	2,610		
	 years	of	safe	driving.	A	listing	of	the	recipients	of	these	awards	is	
 published annually in The Wheel.

Fleet
• OATS	received	a	total	of	65	new	vehicles	this	fiscal	year	and	sold	39.	OATS	

fleet	consisted	of	847	vehicles,	inlcuding	48	leased	vehicles.

Operations
• OATS	provided	a	total	of	1,471,182	trips-	or	745,819	operating	hours.
• Our	vehicles	traveled	13,957,983	miles.
• 28,463	Missourians	were	served.
• The	total	amount	paid	for	insurance	coverage	in	FY17	was	$1,661,111.

Facilities
• OATS	has	a	total	of	eight	regional	offices-	5	OATS	owned	buildings	and	3	

rented		spaces,	plus	3	satellite	offices	in	rented	spaces.

Volunteers and In-Kind Support
• The	OATS	County	Support	Committees	continue	to	work	hard	advocating	

for	OATS	and	various	fundraising	efforts.		More	than	590	volunteers	serve	
on	our	county	committees.

• Over	200	volunteers	attended	Transportation	Day	at	the	Capitol	in	April	
2017.	All	volunteer	hours	are	used	toward	in-kind	support	dollars,	which	
totaled	$1,052,511.

• A	special	thank	you	to	the	Missouri	newspapers	who	support	OATS	by	
printing	our	bus	schedules	free	of	charge.	1,204	bus	schedules	were	print-
ed	in	local	newspapers	for	an	in-kind	value	of	$60,934.

Board of Directors
OATS	Board	of	Directors	held	six	meetings;	all	board	meetings	are	held	at	
OATS	Home	Office	&	are	open	to	the	public.		Officers	include:	President	-	
Nolan	McNeill	of	Cassville;		Vice	President	-	Mel	Sundermeyer	of	Holts	Sum-
mit;	Treasurer	-	Betty	Smith	of	Clark;	and		Secretary	-	Don	Reed	of	Salisbury.

OATS Funding

Where it Comes From ...
Federal	Transit	Administration	Grants	....... 36%
Special Service Contracts	........................... 28%
Medicaid	.................................................... 14%
Area Agencies on Aging	............................... 6%
Rider/Local	Contributions	........................... 6%
State Funding	............................................... 6%
Other 	....................................................... 4%

The firm of Graves and Associates, CPA’s, LLC of Jefferson City, MO, audits the financial statements of OATS, Inc. annually.  The  Audit Report is reviewed and adopted by the OATS, Inc. Board of Directors. 
Copies of these financial statements are available upon request by contacting OATS at 2501 Maguire Blvd., Ste. 101, Columbia, MO  65201; telephone (573) 443-4516.

Where it Goes ...
Driver/Dispatcher	Wages/Benefits	............53%
Gasoline	..................................................... 11%
Direct	Operating	Support	...........................11%
Indirect	Administration	Expense	..................7%
Repairs	&	Maintenance	...............................7%
Vehicle	Insurance	......................................... 5%
Driver’s	Expenses	&	Operating	Supplies	......4%
Capital Investment	....................................... 2%

Highlights:

OATS Covers More than 50,640 Square Miles!









































































 

 

OATS,
Incorporated

Columbia, Missouri

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

For the Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016



Government Auditing Standards

 The Uniform Guidance



 

 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Directors of 
OATS, Incorporated
Columbia, Missouri:

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of OATS, Incorporated (“OATS”), a not-for-profit 
entity, which comprise the statements of financial position as of June 30, 2017 and 2016, and the related 
statements of activities and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial 
statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We 
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material 
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation 
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s 
internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates 
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

1

3702 West Truman Boulevard, Suite 213 • Jefferson City, MO  65109
573-893-7700 • Fax 573-893-6649  



 

 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of OATS as of June 30, 2017 and 2016, and the changes in its net assets and its cash 
flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America.

Other Matters

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. 
The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of 
Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required 
part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived 
from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial 
statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the 
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such 
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial 
statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is 
fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 7, 
2017, on our consideration of OATS’ internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other 
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering OATS’ internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance.

GRAVES AND ASSOCIATES, CPAs, LLC
Jefferson City, Missouri

November 7, 2017

2



OATS, INCORPORATED

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
JUNE 30, 2017 and 2016

2017 2016

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents 3,637,252$              2,606,550$               
Certificates of Deposit 778,267 287,001
Investments 3,428,569 4,611,556
Grants and Contracts Receivable 3,379,668 3,174,038
Other Receivables (Less Allowance for Doubtful 
Accounts of $10,000 and $10,000, Respectively) 534,477 469,528
Prepaid Expenses 670,317 516,450

Total Current Assets 12,428,550 11,665,123

NONCURRENT ASSETS

Company Owned Life Insurance Benefit 1,681,619 1,432,394
Deposits 4,122 4,122
Land, Buildings and Equipment, Net 22,186,030 24,457,932

Total Noncurrent Assets 23,871,771 25,894,448

     TOTAL ASSETS 36,300,321$            37,559,571$             

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable 616,296$                 527,386$                  
Accrued Payroll and Related Taxes 704,920 654,064
Accrued Leave 187,793 165,790
Current Portion of Separate Funding Arrangements 74,849 74,849
Operating Escrow 1,040,000 1,100,000
Deferred Revenue 139,066 81,516

     Total Current Liabilities 2,762,924 2,603,605

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
Deferred Compensation Obligations 1,323,359 1,039,029
Separate Funding Arrangements Less Current Portion 588,469 615,837

     Total Noncurrent Liabilities 1,911,828 1,654,866

     Total Liabilities 4,674,752 4,258,471

NET ASSETS
Unrestricted 30,056,402 31,750,628
Temporarily Restricted 1,569,167 1,550,472

   Total Net Assets 31,625,569 33,301,100

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
NET ASSETS 36,300,321$            37,559,571$             

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

3



O
A

TS
, I

N
C

O
R

PO
R

A
TE

D

ST
A

TE
M

EN
TS

 O
F 

A
C

TI
V

IT
IE

S
Fo

r T
he

 Y
ea

rs
 E

nd
ed

 Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

7 
an

d 
20

16

 T
em

po
ra

ril
y

 T
em

po
ra

ril
y

U
nr

es
tri

ct
ed

R
es

tri
ct

ed
To

ta
l

U
nr

es
tri

ct
ed

R
es

tri
ct

ed
To

ta
l

O
PE

R
A

TI
N

G
 S

U
PP

O
R

T 
A

N
D

 R
EV

EN
U

ES
A

re
a 

A
ge

nc
ie

s o
n 

A
gi

ng
 C

on
tra

ct
s

1,
72

0,
61

4
$ 

   
   

   
  

52
,9

82
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
1,

77
3,

59
6

$ 
   

   
   

1,
76

1,
52

8
$ 

   
   

 
52

,1
92

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

1,
81

3,
72

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

Fe
de

ra
l a

nd
 S

ta
te

 A
ss

is
ta

nc
e-

Se
ct

io
n 

53
10

 G
ra

nt
30

0,
00

0
-

30
0,

00
0

11
9,

00
0

-
11

9,
00

0
Fe

de
ra

l a
nd

 S
ta

te
 A

ss
is

ta
nc

e-
Se

ct
io

n 
53

11
 G

ra
nt

9,
37

0,
51

2
-

9,
37

0,
51

2
8,

40
0,

27
3

-
8,

40
0,

27
3

Fe
de

ra
l a

nd
 S

ta
te

 A
ss

is
ta

nc
e-

Se
ct

io
n 

53
16

 R
ur

al
 G

ra
nt

-
-

-
30

6,
04

6
-

30
6,

04
6

Fe
de

ra
l a

nd
 S

ta
te

 A
ss

is
ta

nc
e-

Se
ct

io
n 

53
16

 S
m

al
l U

rb
an

 G
ra

nt
90

,5
15

-
90

,5
15

15
6,

57
6

-
15

6,
57

6
Fe

de
ra

l a
nd

 S
ta

te
 A

ss
is

ta
nc

e-
Se

ct
io

n 
53

17
 N

ew
 F

re
ed

om
 G

ra
nt

-
-

-
22

7,
86

3
-

22
7,

86
3

Fe
de

ra
l a

nd
 S

ta
te

 F
ue

l E
xc

is
e 

Ta
x 

R
ef

un
ds

48
9,

43
2

-
48

9,
43

2
46

6,
52

0
-

46
6,

52
0

R
id

er
 C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
13

9,
97

4
-

13
9,

97
4

14
7,

07
8

-
14

7,
07

8
R

id
er

 F
ar

es
32

7,
50

1
-

32
7,

50
1

31
4,

11
6

-
31

4,
11

6
Ti

tle
 X

X
-D

ep
ar

tm
en

t o
f M

en
ta

l H
ea

lth
87

9,
41

7
-

87
9,

41
7

63
1,

58
7

-
63

1,
58

7
Sp

ec
ia

l B
ill

in
gs

7,
60

3,
36

0
10

3,
91

8
7,

70
7,

27
8

7,
36

0,
63

0
98

,9
96

7,
45

9,
62

6
M

ed
ic

ai
d 

Tr
an

sp
or

ta
tio

n
3,

81
4,

46
8

14
3,

25
1

3,
95

7,
71

9
3,

80
7,

89
4

14
2,

26
3

3,
95

0,
15

7
O

th
er

1,
74

3,
36

1
-

1,
74

3,
36

1
1,

60
8,

03
3

-
1,

60
8,

03
3

To
ta

l O
pe

ra
tin

g 
Su

pp
or

t a
nd

 R
ev

en
ue

s
26

,4
79

,1
54

30
0,

15
1

26
,7

79
,3

05
25

,3
07

,1
44

29
3,

45
1

25
,6

00
,5

95
N

et
 A

ss
et

s R
el

ea
se

d 
fr

om
 R

es
tri

ct
io

ns
28

1,
45

6
(2

81
,4

56
)

-
32

2,
51

9
(3

22
,5

19
)

-
To

ta
l S

up
po

rt 
an

d 
R

ev
en

ue
s

26
,7

60
,6

10
18

,6
95

26
,7

79
,3

05
25

,6
29

,6
63

(2
9,

06
8)

25
,6

00
,5

95

O
PE

R
A

TI
N

G
 E

X
PE

N
SE

S
Pr

og
ra

m
 S

er
vi

ce
s:

 
D

ire
ct

 E
xp

en
se

s
27

,2
33

,6
36

-
27

,2
33

,6
36

26
,0

51
,4

63
-

26
,0

51
,4

63
Su

pp
or

tin
g 

Se
rv

ic
es

: 
In

di
re

ct
 E

xp
en

se
s

2,
97

8,
88

6
-

2,
97

8,
88

6
2,

92
8,

89
4

-
2,

92
8,

89
4

To
ta

l O
pe

ra
tin

g 
Ex

pe
ns

es
30

,2
12

,5
22

-
30

,2
12

,5
22

28
,9

80
,3

57
-

28
,9

80
,3

57
Ex

ce
ss

 (D
ef

ic
ie

nc
y)

 o
f O

pe
ra

tin
g 

Su
pp

or
t a

nd
 R

ev
en

ue
s 

ov
er

 O
pe

ra
tin

g 
Ex

pe
ns

es
 B

ef
or

e 
N

on
op

er
at

in
g 

R
ev

en
ue

 
an

d 
C

ap
ita

l A
dd

iti
on

s R
ev

en
ue

 a
nd

 O
th

er
 S

up
po

rt
(3

,4
51

,9
12

)
18

,6
95

(3
,4

33
,2

17
)

(3
,3

50
,6

94
)

(2
9,

06
8)

(3
,3

79
,7

62
)

N
O

N
O

PE
R

A
TI

N
G

 R
EV

EN
U

E
In

ve
st

m
en

t I
nc

om
e

51
,9

35
-

51
,9

35
11

0,
13

4
-

11
0,

13
4

To
ta

l N
on

op
er

at
in

g 
R

ev
en

ue
51

,9
35

-
51

,9
35

11
0,

13
4

-
11

0,
13

4
Ex

ce
ss

 (D
ef

ic
ie

nc
y)

 o
f O

pe
ra

tin
g 

Su
pp

or
t a

nd
 R

ev
en

ue
s 

ov
er

 O
pe

ra
tin

g 
Ex

pe
ns

es
, p

lu
s N

on
op

er
at

in
g 

R
ev

en
ue

, 
B

ef
or

e 
C

ap
ita

l A
dd

iti
on

s R
ev

en
ue

 a
nd

 O
th

er
 S

up
po

rt
(3

,3
99

,9
77

)
18

,6
95

(3
,3

81
,2

82
)

(3
,2

40
,5

60
)

(2
9,

06
8)

(3
,2

69
,6

28
)

C
A

PI
TA

L 
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
S 

R
EV

EN
U

E 
A

N
D

 O
TH

ER
 S

U
PP

O
R

T
Fe

de
ra

l A
ss

is
ta

nc
e 

Pr
og

ra
m

 G
ra

nt
s

1,
15

6,
40

6
-

1,
15

6,
40

6
72

3,
81

0
-

72
3,

81
0

O
th

er
 C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
57

6,
65

9
-

57
6,

65
9

1,
64

3,
41

3
-

1,
64

3,
41

3
G

ai
n 

(L
os

s)
 fr

om
 S

al
e 

of
 P

ro
pe

rty
 a

nd
 E

qu
ip

m
en

t
(2

4,
30

3)
-

(2
4,

30
3)

(7
36

)
-

(7
36

)
O

th
er

 M
is

ce
lla

ne
ou

s
(3

,0
11

)
-

(3
,0

11
)

-
-

-
To

ta
l C

ap
ita

l A
dd

iti
on

s R
ev

en
ue

 a
nd

 O
th

er
 S

up
po

rt
1,

70
5,

75
1

-
1,

70
5,

75
1

2,
36

6,
48

7
-

2,
36

6,
48

7

C
ha

ng
e 

in
 N

et
 A

ss
et

s
(1

,6
94

,2
26

)
18

,6
95

(1
,6

75
,5

31
)

(8
74

,0
73

)
(2

9,
06

8)
(9

03
,1

41
)

N
et

 A
ss

et
s, 

B
eg

in
ni

ng
 o

f Y
ea

r
31

,7
50

,6
28

1,
55

0,
47

2
33

,3
01

,1
00

32
,6

24
,7

01
1,

57
9,

54
0

34
,2

04
,2

41

N
et

 A
ss

et
s, 

En
d 

of
 Y

ea
r

30
,0

56
,4

02
$ 

   
   

   
1,

56
9,

16
7

$ 
   

   
   

31
,6

25
,5

69
$ 

   
   

 
31

,7
50

,6
28

$ 
   

  
1,

55
0,

47
2

$ 
   

   
   

33
,3

01
,1

00
$ 

   
   

   

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

7
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
6

Th
e 

ac
co

m
pa

ny
in

g 
no

te
s a

re
 a

n 
in

te
gr

al
 p

ar
t o

f t
he

se
 fi

na
nc

ia
l s

ta
te

m
en

ts
.

4



OATS, INCORPORATED

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016

2017 2016
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Change in Net Assets (1,675,531)$          (903,141)$             
Adjustments to Reconcile Change in Net Assets to Cash Provided 
(Used) by Operating Activities

Depreciation 4,280,012 4,111,184
Capital Additions Revenue (1,156,406) (723,810)
(Gain) Loss on Sale of Property and Equipment 24,303 736
Unrealized (Gain) Loss on Investments 80,703 (11,070)

Adjustments for Changes in Operating Assets and Liabilities:
Grants, Contracts and Other Receivables (270,579) (871,265)
Prepaid Expenses (153,867) 338,249
Accounts Payable 88,910 (682,833)
Accrued Payroll and Related Taxes 50,856 (14,877)
Deferred Compensation Obligations (27,368) (25,523)
Separate Funding Arrangements 284,330 109,987
Accrued Leave 22,003 10,005
Operating Escrow (60,000) -
Deferred Revenue 57,550 16,711

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 1,544,916 1,354,353

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Bus Match, Building and Equipment Payments (1,690,872) (1,936,666)
Net Proceeds (Payments) from the 
   Sale of Property and Equipment 5,108 11,200
Deferred Compensation Plan Investments (249,225) (56,592)
Earnings added to Certificates of Deposit - (235)
Net (Purchase)/Redemption of Investments 611,018 (1,715,407)

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities (1,323,971) (3,697,700)

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Private Contributions for Bus and Equipment Purchase 2,235 8,610
Capital Grant Receipts 807,522 (339,956)

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Financing Activities 809,757 (331,346)

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,030,702 (2,674,693)

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 2,606,550 5,281,243
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year 3,637,252$           2,606,550$           

Supplemental Information:
Non-Cash Transactions:

Direct purchases for OATS by Resource Providers of Buses 
and Bus Equipment 346,649$               1,055,156$            

Cash paid during the year for:
Interest                                          47,481$                 49,326$                 
Income Taxes                                       -$                       -$                       

Disclosure of Accounting Policy:
For purposes of the statement of cash flows, OATS considers all highly liquid investments 
available for current use with an initial maturity of three months or less when purchased to 
be cash and cash equivalents. 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

5



OATS, INCORPORATED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 AND 2016

6 
 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

Nature of Business

OATS, Incorporated (“OATS”) is a private, not-for-profit corporation that provides transportation services to 
the general public, with emphasis on senior citizens and individuals with disabilities, in 87 counties in Missouri.  
OATS receives funding through a variety of purchase-of-service contracts from social service agencies and 
other entities throughout Missouri, as well as through several State of Missouri and federally funded capital and 
operating grant programs.

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting, whereby revenues are reported 
when earned and expenses are reported when incurred.

Financial Statement Presentation

Financial information regarding activities is presented according to three types of net assets:  unrestricted, 
temporarily restricted, or permanently restricted, based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed 
restrictions or stipulations. OATS does not have any permanently restricted net assets as of the years ended, 
respectively. Assets without donor-imposed restrictions, including assets designated for specific use by OATS’ 
Board of Directors, are included in unrestricted net assets.

Temporarily restricted net assets consist of contributions with donor-imposed stipulations that expire when 
OATS uses the restricted funds for their designated purpose. Temporarily restricted contributions generally 
consist of contributions received from County Committees or others that are restricted to be used for the 
matching portion of buses or bus equipment purchased with federal or other grant funds (see Net Assets 
footnote 5). Temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the 
Statement of Activities as Net Assets Released from Restrictions when the assets are expended for the restricted 
purposes. Contributions received with donor-imposed restrictions that are met in the same year in which the 
contributions are received are classified as unrestricted contributions.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures.  
Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates. The estimate of the proportion of urban expenses 
to total expenses used in the calculation of available 5311 match was 19% and 19% in 2017 and 2016,
respectively. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, OATS considers all highly liquid investments available for current 
use with an initial maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash and cash equivalents.



OATS, INCORPORATED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 AND 2016

7 
 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: (Continued)

Investments

Investments in marketable securities with readily determinable fair values and all investments in debt securities 
are reported at their fair values in the Statements of Financial Position. Unrealized gains and losses are included 
in the change in net assets. Investment income and gains restricted by a donor are reported as increases in 
unrestricted net assets if the restrictions are met (either by passage of time or by use) in the reporting period in 
which the income and gains are recognized. Short-term investments consist of debt securities with original 
maturities of twelve months or less. Long-term investments consist of debt securities with original maturities 
greater than twelve months. 

Contributions

Contributions received, including unconditional promises to give from a donor, are recognized as revenues in
the period received at their fair values.  Conditional promises to give are recognized as contributions revenue 
when they become unconditional, that is, when the conditions are substantially met.  Contributions are recorded 
as unrestricted, temporarily restricted, or permanently restricted net assets depending on the existence or nature 
of any donor restrictions. 

Accounts Receivable and Bad Debts

Accounts receivable consists primarily of balances due from federal and state agencies, reported at cost, for 
services performed.  OATS believes its allowance for doubtful accounts balance as of the years ended of
$10,000 and $10,000, respectively, is sufficient to cover potentially uncollectible accounts.

Company Owned Life Insurance Benefit

OATS is the owner and beneficiary of life insurance policies on the lives of two key officers, with face values 
of $1,500,000 and $1,000,000. These contracts are carried on the Statements of Financial Position at cash value,
as determine by the contract issuer. The change in cash value is recorded as an adjustment to premiums paid.

Land, Buildings, and Equipment

Expenditures for land, buildings, and equipment over $10,000 ($5,000 for the year ended June 30, 2016), which 
have a useful life of one year or more are capitalized at cost (and all assets purchased using grant funds are 
capitalized, regardless of cost).  Donations of land, buildings, and equipment are recorded as contributions at 
their estimated fair value as of the date received. Such donations are reported as unrestricted contributions 
unless the donor has restricted the donated asset to a specific purpose.  Assets donated with explicit restrictions 
regarding their use and contributions of cash that must be used to acquire property and equipment are reported
as restricted contributions. Absent donor stipulations regarding how long those donated assets must be 
maintained, OATS reports expirations of donor restrictions when the donated or acquired assets are placed in 
service.  OATS reclassifies temporarily restricted net assets to unrestricted net assets at that time.



OATS, INCORPORATED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 AND 2016

8 
 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: (Continued)

Land, Buildings, and Equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is provided at straight-line rates over the following estimated useful lives:

Buildings and improvements 10-40 years
Buses and grant equipment 3-5 years
Office equipment 5-10 years

Accrued Leave 

Employee accrued leave varies depending on, among other things, length of employment and position. Liability 
for accrued leave is recorded for amounts that vest and would be paid in the event of the individual’s 
termination of employment.

Tax Status

OATS is a not-for-profit organization that is exempt from income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal 
Revenue Code, except for taxes on unrelated business income, if any, and is classified as other than a private 
foundation.

Advertising Costs

OATS expenses advertising costs as it occurs. Expenditures for advertising and marketing during the years 
ended were approximately $40,678 and $20,452, respectively.

Risk Management

OATS purchases insurance coverage for various risks related to liability, errors and omissions; thefts of, 
damage to, and destruction of assets; injuries to employees; and natural disasters.

During the year ended June 30, 2017, OATS increased its deductible for vehicle coverage to $50,000 per 
accident in an effort to mitigate the rising cost of insurance.  By increasing the deductible to $50,000, OATS 
was able to save $385,000 in premium dollars, and recognized a net savings, after claim payments, of $318,490.  



OATS, INCORPORATED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 AND 2016

9 
 

NOTE 2 – CASH, CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT, AND INVESTMENTS:

The following is a summary of cash and cash equivalents, certificates of deposit, and investments as of the years
ended, respectively:

2017
Cash and Cash Certificates

Equivalents of Deposit Investments Total
General Operating $ 777,520 $ - $ - $ 777,520
Bus Match 215,472 122,612 - 338,084
Capital Replacement 882,910 - 294,477 1,177,387
Contingency 1,761,350 655,655 3,134,092 5,551,097

$ 3,637,252 $ 778,267 $ 3,428,569 $ 7,844,088

2016
Cash and Cash Certificates

Equivalents of Deposit Investments Total
General Operating $ (109,343) $ - $ - $ (109,343)
Bus Match 1,418,607 85,319 - 1,503,926
Capital Replacement 730,395 - 301 353 1,031,748
Contingency 566,891 201,682 4,310,203 5,078,776

$ 2,606,550 $ 287,001 $ 4,611,556 $ 7,505,107

Investment income for the years ended was as follows:   

2017 2016
Interest $ 132,639 $ 99,064
Net Realized and 
Unrealized Gains (Losses) (80,703) 11,070

$ 51,936 $ 110,134

NOTE 3 – CONCENTRATIONS:

Cash and cash equivalents for the years ended includes demand, savings, money market accounts, certificates of 
deposit and repurchase account balances. OATS had a total of $3,417,000 and $0, respectively, in repurchase 
accounts with Central Bank of Boone County as of the years ended, respectively.  

The repurchase account is an overnight purchase of securities that allows for the collateralization of account 
balances and allows OATS to receive interest on their cash account balances swept into the repurchase account. 
OAT’s has a perfected interest in each security purchased overnight but agrees to sell that security back to the 
bank with the opening of the bank the following business day. Balances in the repurchase accounts are not 
insured or guaranteed by FDIC or any other government agency. Rather, the balance represents an investment 
in specific government-backed securities as evidenced by individual security CUSIP numbers.



OATS, INCORPORATED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 AND 2016

10 
 

NOTE 3 – CONCENTRATIONS: (Continued)  

For the year ended June 30, 2016, the bank pledged collateral with a market value of $5,637,568 to secure cash 
and cash equivalent balances. With this pledged collateral, all balances were fully insured and/or collateralized, 
with excess collateralization available.

For the year ended June 30, 2017, the bank was no longer legally allowed to provide collateralization of 
balances nor to provide collateral in excess of FDIC limits. Rather, repurchase accounts are used, as defined 
above, whereby specific securities are purchased in the name of OATS each day. Market valuations of these 
securities can be independently verified for each security purchased overnight.

OATS receives a number of federal grants for operating and capital acquisition purposes.  Total expenditures 
during the years ended were $12,680,515 and $12,668,230, respectively related to those grant programs, as
listed on the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards. OATS also receives significant funding for Medicaid 
transportation services, as well as individually significant contracts for services from three other entities 
whereby OATS provides contracted transportation services on behalf of those entities. Significant balances
included in Grants and Contracts Receivable are as follows:

Brokers for transportation services for the Medicaid program in the State of Missouri:
2017 2016

Logisticare $        481,926 $        497,067 

Federal Portion of Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Section 5311 funding: 
MODOT $    1,558,001 $    1,056,370 

Direct contract for transportation services: 
PLB $        349,493 $        399,628 

NOTE 4 – LAND, BUILDINGS, AND EQUIPMENT:

The following is a summary of major classifications of land, buildings and equipment:
2017 2016

Non-Depreciable
Land and Improvements $         1,198,457 $ 1,198,457

Depreciable
Buildings and Improvements 18,599,673 18,572,453
Buses 33,564,900 33,381,670
Bus Equipment 5,801,590 6,344,044
Furniture, Fixtures, and Equipment 681,196 596,378

59,845,816 60,093,002
Less:  Accumulated Depreciation (37,659,786) (35,635,070)

Net $ 22,186,030 $ 24,457,932

Depreciation expense totaled $4,280,012 and $4,111,184, respectively, for the years ended.



OATS, INCORPORATED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 AND 2016

11 
 

NOTE 5 – NET ASSETS:  

Net assets were designated and restricted as follows as of the years then ended:

2017 2016
Temporarily
Restricted:

Bus Match $ - $ 1,569,167 $ 1,569,167 $ - $1,550,472 $ 1,550,472

Unrestricted:
Designated for: 

Bus Match 872,240 - 872,240 - - -
Contingencies 6,188,597 - 6,188,597 6,226,261 - 6,226,261

Undesignated: 809,535 - 809,535 1,066,435 - 1,066,435

Net Book Value of
Land, Building and
Equipment 22,186,030 - 22,186,030 24,457,932 - 24,457,932

$ 30,056,402 $ 1,569,167 $31,625,569 $ 31,750,628 $1,550,472 $33,301,100

Bus Matching Funds:  Some vehicles and special bus equipment are financed by grant funds from FTA 
programs administered by the State of Missouri. Depending on the grant, 50% to 100% of the vehicle cost is 
funded by grant monies and the remaining amount is funded by OATS. OATS receives donations from 
affiliated County Committees and other organizations which are restricted for financing OATS’ portion of the 
cost of buses and special bus equipment. These donations include both direct contributions and amounts in 
excess of expenses derived from fundraising activities. Certain contracts for services provide that a portion of 
contract revenues will be set aside for bus match. Bus match net assets include both unrestricted and 
temporarily restricted funds. Temporarily restricted net assets consist of donations that have been received from 
County Committees and other organizations but have not yet been used for bus match. Unrestricted bus match 
net assets are an accumulation of unrestricted funds that OATS’ Board of Directors has designated to be used 
for bus match and of revenues designated to be used for bus match under the terms of certain contracts for 
services.

Contingency Reserve: The Board of Directors of OATS periodically designates various net revenues, including 
interest income, to be set aside in a contingency reserve. The Board of Directors may authorize contingency 
fund assets to be used to fund general operating and/or capital expenses. The portion of net assets reserved for 
contingencies is equal to the cash and investments in reserve plus any amounts due to general operating funds 
from other funds.

In November, 2011, OATS Board of Directors approved a $1,000,000, transfer from the Contingency Fund to 
the Bus Match Fund, and an interest-free loan in the amount of $2,000,000, from the Contingency Fund to the 
Operating Fund to be repaid monthly in $35,000, installments until repaid in full. In September, 2015, OATS 
Board of Directors approved an additional $1,000,000, loan from the Contingency Fund to the Operating Fund.  
Beginning October 1, 2015, the total balance of $1,530,000, was to be repaid at $42,500, per month for thirty 
six months.  Balances outstanding on the loans as of the years ended were $637,500 and $1,147,500,
respectively.



OATS, INCORPORATED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 AND 2016

12 
 

NOTE 6 – FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS:  

Fair values of assets measured on a recurring basis as of the years ended are as follows:

Fair Value Measurements at Reporting Date Using
Markets for Other Significant

Identical Observable Unobservable
Fair Assets Inputs Inputs

Value (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
June 30, 2017
Government Issues $         701,708 $          701,708 $ - $ -
Tax Exempt Bonds 1,323,547 1,323,547 - -
Corporate Bonds 1,403,314 1,403,314

$      3,428,569 $       3,428,569 $ - $ -

June 30, 2016
Government Issues $         709,530 $          709,530 $ - $ -
Tax Exempt Bonds 2,690,448 2,690,448 - -
Corporate Bonds 1,211,578 1,211,578

$      4,611,556 $       4,611,556 $ - $ -

Financial assets valued using level 1 inputs are based on unadjusted quoted market prices within active markets.
Financial assets valued using level 2 inputs are based primarily on quoted prices for similar assets in active or 
inactive markets.  Financial assets valued using level 3 inputs are based primarily using the market approach. 
There are no financial assets valued using level 2 or level 3 measurements for the years ended.

NOTE 7 – FTA PROGRAM GRANTS:

OATS receives operating assistance under the FTA Section 5310, 5311, Section 5316, and Section 5317,
programs through the Missouri Department of Transportation (MODOT). The purpose of the Section 5310, 
Enhanced Mobility for Seniors and Individuals with Disabilities, is to provide transportation services to seniors 
and individuals with disabilities.  The purpose of the Section 5311-Public Transportation Non-Urbanized Areas 
program is to provide transportation service to the general public who reside in rural areas. The purpose of the 
Section 5316 Job Access Reverse Commute (JARC) Rural and Small Urban programs is to provide 
transportation services to connect welfare and low-income persons to employment and support services. 

The purpose of the Section 5317 New Freedom Grant program was to provide new public transportation 
services and new public transportation alternatives beyond those required by the American with Disabilities Act 
(ADA) of 1990, that are designed to assist individuals with disabilities. Federal and State of Missouri awards 
under each of these programs fund the lesser of half of the annual operating deficit for the related services or the
maximum grant award for the fiscal year. The Section 5317 operations grant was spent down completely during 
the year ended June 30, 2016, and the Section 5317 capital grant was spent down completely during the year 
ended June 30, 2017.  Services previously included in the Section 5317 grant will be included in the Section 
5310 grant in the future.



OATS, INCORPORATED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 AND 2016

13 
 

NOTE 7 – FTA PROGRAM GRANTS: (Continued)

MODOT regulations permit a limited amount of local funds to be excluded from revenues otherwise required to 
be applied against Section 5311 eligible expenses, provided the amount excluded is determined to be needed for 
future operations or capital improvements and is deposited into escrowed funds to be used for such future needs. 
OATS has set aside (used) escrows of $(60,000) and $0 for operations during the years ended, respectively, (for 
a cumulative operating escrow set aside of $1,040,000 and $1,100,000, respectively, as of the years ended), and 
$300,152 and $293,451, for capital improvements, respectively, for the years ended. Total grants expended for 
capital improvements were $1,537,713 and $1,988,412 for the years ended, respectively.

NOTE 8 – RETIREMENT PLANS:  

Effective October 1, 2005, OATS adopted an Internal Revenue Code (IRC) Section 457(b) retirement plan for 
management staff. Under the plan, OATS makes additions to individual deferred compensation accounts of 
participating management staff, which accounts are fully vested. OATS has funded in the past, and intends to 
continue funding, annual contributions to a participating employee’s account 12 years prior to the employee’s 
normal retirement date. However, contributions are at the discretion of the Board of Directors. Employees 
cannot make contributions to their accounts. The balance in a participant’s accounts will be paid out over 20 
years to the participant or named beneficiary upon retirement or other termination of service, including due to 
death or disability. Contributions of approximately $166,304 and $126,000, respectively, to participant accounts 
made during the years ended have been recorded as an expense and a liability in the accompanying financial 
statements. 

In addition to the above, on October 1, 2005 OATS adopted separate funding arrangements with two 
management staff.  OATS intends to provide payments for 20 years to each individual upon retirement, 
termination of service due to death or disability, or termination of service upon obtaining eligibility for benefits 
by obtaining the required combination of age and term of employment with OATS.  Both of these individuals 
retired from OATS as of June 30, 2012.  These were unfunded arrangements and payments were at the 
discretion of the Board of Directors who had the right to decide on an annual basis whether to make payments, 
reduce payments, or eliminate payments. Since it was the intent of OATS to provide the maximum benefits 
described in the arrangements, it recorded an expense and a liability based on the estimated net present value of 
the full benefits available under these arrangements.  When payments were made, a portion reduced the liability 
and the remainder was expensed as interest in the current period.  OATS paid benefits in the amounts of 
$74,849 and $74,849 during the years ended, respectively, with $47,481 and $49,326, respectively, of the 
payments, allocated to interest expense.

Liabilities of $1,323,359 and $1,039,029, respectively, have been recorded as Deferred Compensation 
Obligations and $663,318 and $690,686, respectively, have been recorded as Separate Funding Arrangements, 
current and noncurrent, in the accompanying Statements of Financial Position as of the years then ended.



OATS, INCORPORATED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 AND 2016

14 
 

NOTE 8 – RETIREMENT PLANS: (Continued)

OATS sponsors a salary reduction contribution plan pursuant to Section 403(b) of the Internal Revenue Code 
(“IRC”), covering substantially all employees. Eligible employees may elect to contribute a specific dollar 
amount of their compensation per pay period up to the maximum annual amount allowed by the IRC. 
Participants who have attained age 50 before the end of the plan year are eligible to make catch-up
contributions. Also, participants with 15 years of service may make catch-up contributions, as allowed by the 
IRC. Additionally, participants are permitted to make rollover contributions to the plan. OATS makes no 
contributions to the plan.

Management staff has had the option of participating in a Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan (SERP). 
Under the SERP, OATS has contributed 50% of a participant’s contribution, not to exceed 5% of the 
participant’s salary, and also contributes additional amounts based on the participant’s years of services with 
OATS. Employees are fully vested after two years of participation in the plan. No contributions have been made 
to the plan since adoption of the plans on October 1, 2005, that are discussed in above paragraphs. 

NOTE 9 – CONTRIBUTED SERVICES:

A substantial number of unpaid volunteers have made significant contributions of their time to help defray the 
cost of OATS’ program and support services. These in-kind contributions are not reflected in these financial 
statements since these services do not meet the criteria for recognition. They have an estimated fair value of 
$2,222,703 and $2,088,708, respectively, for the years ended.

NOTE 10 – OPERATING LEASES:

OATS leases office space at various locations. The following is a schedule of future minimum lease payments 
under noncancellable leases:

Year Ended Year Ended
2017 2016

2017 $ - 2017 $      47,475 
2018 56,532 2018 47,880
2019 42,360 2019 42,360
2020 29,567 2020 29,375
2021 18,000 2021 18,000
2022 18,000 2022-2026 92,400

2023-2027 93,500 2027-2031 99,760
2028-2032 101,483 2032-2034 63,240
2033-2034 42,160 $    440,490 

$   401,602

Lease and rental expense, including noncancellable operating leases and rent set-aside payments (amounts 
allocated, or set-aside, for repairs and maintenance to OATS’ owned properties) totaled $218,762 and $281,911
for the years then ended, respectively.  The rent set-aside portion totaled $178,200 and $237,600, respectively.



OATS, INCORPORATED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 AND 2016

15 
 

NOTE 11 – CONTRACTS UNDER TITLE III AND SOCIAL SERVICE BLOCK GRANTS:

Area Agencies on Aging contracts funded by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services Title III and 
Social Service Block Grant programs are subject to audit by the awarding agencies at the option of the agencies.  

NOTE 12 – COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES:

Legal contingencies:  From time to time claims are asserted against OATS related to vehicular accidents. 
Attorneys representing OATS’ liability insurance carrier defend against such claims. No provision has been 
made in the accompanying financial statements for any potential loss in connection with outstanding claims 
because management feels any settlements or judgments against OATS will not exceed the insurance policy 
limits.

Grants:  OATS has been awarded various grants that have either not been drawn on or have only been partially 
drawn.  Grants are cost-reimbursement grants, so requests for grant reimbursements will be recorded as grant 
expenses are incurred.  Remaining balance on approved grants is approximately $59,573 and $130,394,
respectively, for the years ended.  Matching is required on certain portions of the grants.  Estimates of match 
requirements are $14,893 and $32,598, respectively, for the years ended.  Estimates of additional expense 
commitments as of the years ended, to be paid from Contingency Funds, are approximately $50,000 and 
$75,000, respectively.

OATS self-insures the comprehensive and collision coverage for damage to its automobiles.  Passenger injury,
bodily injury and other liabilities related to automobile and other accidents are insured by commercial insurance 
policies.  

NOTE 13 – UNCERTAIN TAX POSITIONS:

OATS is exempt from Federal and State income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code 
and applicable state law. The accounting standard on accounting for uncertainty in income taxes addresses the 
determination of whether tax benefits claimed or expected to be claimed on a tax return should be recorded in 
the financial statements.  Under that guidance, OATS may recognize the tax benefit from an uncertain tax 
position only if it is more likely than not that the tax position will be sustained on examination by taxing 
authorities based on the technical merits of the position.  Examples of tax positions include the tax-exempt 
status of OATS and various positions related to the potential sources of unrelated business taxable income 
(UBIT).  OATS was not subject to UBIT for the years ended.

OATS files form 990 in the U.S. federal jurisdiction. OATS is generally no longer subject to examination by the 
Internal Revenue Service three years after the forms were filed.



OATS, INCORPORATED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 AND 2016

16 
 

NOTE 14 – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS:

OATS has evaluated subsequent events through November 7, 2017, the date which the financial statements 
were available to be issued, as follows:

Subsequent to year end, OATS divided the East region into two regions.  Going forward, the East Region will 
include St. Louis and St. Charles Counties, and the new Mideast Region will include Franklin and Jefferson 
Counties. OATS also hired an additional Regional Director. 

Subsequent to year end, OATS received new Intercity Division funding of approximately $350,000.  This 
funding a separate grant which will be reported in the 5311 program.

Effective July 1, 2017, OATS absorbed the operations of the Franklin County Transportation Council, Inc. 
(“FCTC”).  OATS had been managing the operation for over twenty years.  Effective with the transition, all 
FCTC drivers became OATS employees and the assets became OATS assets.



 

 

SUPPLEMENTARY
INFORMATION

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



2017 2016
Direct Expenses

Salaries and Employee Benefits - Drivers and Dispatchers 14,094,630$   13,414,402$    
Drivers' Expense and Operating Supplies 498,963 330,124
Gasoline 3,001,093 2,887,824
Repairs and Maintenance 2,395,351 2,389,119
Insurance - Vehicle and Other 1,178,054 1,501,287
Depreciation 3,076,851 2,787,605
Salaries and Employee Benefits - Regional Offices 1,889,420 1,713,754
Other Regional Offices Expenses 1,099,274 1,027,348

Total Direct Expenses 27,233,636 26,051,463

Indirect Expenses
Home Office Compensation:

Home Office Salaries 965,428 874,802
Home Office Fringe Benefits 142,497 127,747
Deferred Compensation 207,146 202,327
Home Office Expense and Other 334,215 300,485
Building Maintenance and Utilities 126,439 99,954
Depreciation 1,203,161 1,323,579

Total Indirect Expenses 2,978,886 2,928,894
Total Operating Expenses 30,212,522$   28,980,357$    

OATS, INCORPORATED

SCHEDULES OF OPERATING EXPENSES
For the Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016

17









 

 

 
 
 

FEDERAL COMPLIANCE
SECTION

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  





Code of Federal Regulations  Uniform Administrative Requirements, Costs Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal 
Awards



 

 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING 
STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors of
OATS, Incorporated
Columbia, Missouri:

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of OATS, Incorporated (a 
nonprofit organization) (“OATS”), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2017,
and the related statement of activities and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the 
financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated November 7, 2017.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered OATS’ internal control 
over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose 
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of OATS’ internal control. Accordingly, we do not express 
an opinion on the effectiveness of OATS’ internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management 
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s 
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant 
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a 
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

23
3702 West Truman Boulevard, Suite 213 • Jefferson City, MO 65109

573-893-7700 • Fax 573-893-6649  



 

 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may 
exist that were not identified. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies 
in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist 
that have not been identified. 

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether OATS’ financial statements are free from material 
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, 
and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The 
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported
under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal 
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, 
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

GRAVES AND ASSOCIATES, CPAs, LLC
Jefferson City, Missouri

November 7, 2017
 
 
 
 
 
 

24



 

 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM 
AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM 

GUIDANCE

To the Board of Directors of
OATS, Incorporated
Columbia, Missouri:

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited OATS, Incorporated’s (“OATS”) compliance with the types of compliance requirements
described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of 
OATS’s major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2017. OATS’ major federal programs are 
identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions 
of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of OATS’ major federal programs based 
on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of 
compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal 
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for 
Federal Awards (the Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan 
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of 
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal 
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about OATS’ compliance with 
those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal 
program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of OATS’ compliance.

25

3702 West Truman Boulevard, Suite 213 • Jefferson City, MO 65109
573-893-7700 • Fax 573-893-6649  



 

 

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, OATS complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred 
to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended 
June 30, 2017.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of OATS is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over 
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our 
audit of compliance, we considered OATS’ internal control over compliance with the types of requirements 
that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance 
for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance 
with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal 
control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of OATS’ internal 
control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, 
or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will 
not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control 
over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with 
a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal 
control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, 
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing 
of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform 
Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

GRAVES AND ASSOCIATES, CPAs, LLC
Jefferson City, Missouri

November 7, 2017

26



 

 

OATS, INCORPORATED
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS 2 CFR SECTION 200.515
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Section I - Summary of Auditor's Results

Financial Statements:

Type of Financial Statement Opinion: Unmodified

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting (GAGAS):

- Material weakness(es) reported? No

- Significant deficiency(ies) reported? No

- Noncompliance material to financial statements 
noted (GAGAS)? No

Federal Awards:

Internal Control Over Major Programs:

- Material weakness(es) reported? No

- Significant deficiency(ies) reported? No

Type of Opinion On Compliance
for Major Programs: Unmodified

Are there any reportable findings under 
2 CFR Section 200.516(a)? No

Identification of major programs:

CFDA Number(s) Name of Federal Program or Cluster

20.509 Nonurbanized Area Formula Program
20.513/20.516/20.521 Transit Services Program Cluster

Dollar Threshold: Type A/B Programs: $750,000

Low Risk Auditee under 
2 CFR Section 200.520? Yes

27



 

 

OATS, INCORPORATED
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS 2 CFR SECTION 200.515
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Section II - Financial Statement Findings

No matters were reported.

Section III - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs
 
No matters were reported.
 

28 



5/15/2018 Oats, Inc. - GuideStar Profile

https://www.guidestar.org/profile/43-1016961 1/1

Revenue and Expenses
Fiscal Year 2016

Source: Self-reported by organization

Revenue

Contributions,
Grants, Gifts

$7,360,630

Program
Services

$17,705,172

Membership
Dues

$0

Special
Events

$0

Other
Revenue

$0

Total
Revenue

$25,065,802

Expenses

Program
Services

$19,040,796

Administration $1,524,191

Fundraising $0

Payments to
Affiliates

$0

Other
Expenses

$4,500,815

Total
Expenses

$25,065,802



5/15/2018 Oats, Inc. - GuideStar Profile

https://www.guidestar.org/profile/43-1016961 1/1

Balance Sheet
Fiscal Year 2016

Source: Self-reported by organization

Assets

Total
Assets

$37,559,571

Liabilities

Total
Liabilities

$4,258,471

Fund
Balance
(EOY)

Net Assets $33,301,100



5/15/2018 Oats, Inc. - GuideStar Profile

https://www.guidestar.org/profile/43-1016961 1/1

Our Results
How does this organization measure their results? It's a hard question but an

important one. These quantitative program results are self-reported by the

organization, illustrating their committment to transparency, learning, and

interest in helping the whole sector learn and grow.

SOURCE: Self-reported by organization

Number of clients who have access to trans porta tion to

job site

TOTALS BY YEAR

2016 595,535

2015 587,391

2014 563,812

POPULATION(S) SERVED

Economically disadvantaged, low-income, and poor people

RELATED PROGRAM

Provide transportation to people who live in rural areas

CONTEXT NOTES

OATS tracks the number of trips we provide to get people to work.

These numbers are tracked daily and represent the number of trips

made for em ploy ment only.



5/15/2018 Oats, Inc. - GuideStar Profile

https://www.guidestar.org/profile/43-1016961 1/1

Mission

The mission of OATS is to provide reliable transportation for
transportation disadvantaged Missourians so they can live
independently in their own communities.

Notes from the Nonprofit
Received an award from the Community Transportation Association of America at the May 2016 Annual Expo. The

award was the Rural Community Transportation System of the Year.
 

 

Received the MPTA Transit Champions Award at the MO Public Transit Association Meeting August, 2016.
 

 

Recognized by the Missouri Community Service Commission for our tireless service and impact on Missouri citizens

in 2017.
 

Ruling Year 
1974

Ms. Dorothy Yeager

Principal Officer

Main Address
2501 Maguire Blvd. Ste. 101

Columbia, MO 65201 USA

Show More Contacts

trans porta tion,

Missouri, rural, health, elderly,

disabled

Keywords

EIN

43-1016961

 Number 

7062250942

Cause Area (NTEE Code) 

Transportation (Free or Subsidized)

(P52)

Senior Centers/Services (P81)

Developmentally Disabled

Services/Centers (P82)

https://bridge-registry.org/


http://www.oatstransit.org/
mailto:dyeager@oatstransit.org
https://www.guidestar.org/rxb/update-nonprofit-report/index.aspx?search=false
https://www.guidestar.org/rxg/help/faqs/financial-data/index.aspx
https://www.guidestar.org/popup_digitizing_irs_form990.html
http://www.guidestar.org/rxb/products/nonprofit-data-solutions/guidestar-premium.aspx


http://www.guidestar.org/rxb/products/nonprofit-data-solutions/guidestar-premium.aspx
https://www.guidestar.org/rxg/help/glossary.aspx
https://www.guidestar.org/FinDocuments/2017/431/016/2017-431016961-0eed40e6-9.pdf
https://www.guidestar.org/FinDocuments/2016/431/016/2016-431016961-0dd23411-9.pdf
https://www.guidestar.org/FinDocuments/2015/431/016/2015-431016961-0c48c948-9.pdf
http://www.guidestar.org/rxb/products/nonprofit-data-solutions/guidestar-premium.aspx
http://www.guidestar.org/ViewEdoc.aspx?eDocId=3887249&approved=True
http://www.guidestar.org/ViewEdoc.aspx?eDocId=3887250&approved=True
https://www.guidestar.org/rxg/help/glossary.aspx
http://www.guidestar.org/rxb/products/nonprofit-data-solutions/guidestar-premium.aspx




http://www.guidestar.org/rxb/products/nonprofit-data-solutions/guidestar-premium.aspx
http://www.guidestar.org/rxb/products/nonprofit-data-solutions/guidestar-premium.aspx


   

Serving Missouri since 1971

To schedule a ride contact your local office, 
or visit our website at www.oatstransit.org

www.oatstransit.org

Thousands of your neighbors and family members 
throughout Missouri have been assisted by 

OATS, Inc. since 1971.   

OATS makes a difference for those with 
transportation disadvantages, including:   

• People who live in rural areas regardless 
 of age or income.
•  People who are senior citizens.
•  People with disabilities.
•  People who use service animals which  
 are permitted on all OATS vehicles.*
•  People on Medicaid who need 
 transportation for non-emergency 
 medical appointments.
•  People who use oxygen tanks and other      
 necessary medical equipment. ** 

*Service animals presenting a danger to the driver 
or other passengers must be confined or constrained.

**All medical equipment must be secured to prevent 
injury in case of an accident or sudden stop.

OATS Home Office
(573) 443-4516
1-888-875-6287

Midwest Region
(660) 827-2611
1-800-276-6287

Northwest Region
816-279-3131

1-800-831-9219

Northeast Region
660-395-3041

1-800-654-6287

West Region
816-380-7433

1-800-480-6287

Mid-MO Region
573-449-3789

1-800-269-6287

East Region
314-888-6720

1-800-201-6287

Southwest Region
417-887-9272

1-800-770-6287

WHO WE ARE

Ensuring safe, reliable and 
courteous transportation for 
Missourians!



To provide reliable transportation for transportation disadvantaged Missourians so they can
live independently in their own communities.

Consistent, long-term funding sources are 
needed to operate and expand OATS services. 
You can help with private donations, and sup-
port government funding for OATS services.

Donate on our website at:
            www.oatstransit.org

ECONOMIC IMPACT
Public transportation is good for our local 
economy.

HEALTH CARE
Chronic diseases such as cancer, heart disease, 
diabetes and others are responsible for 7 out 
of 10 deaths among Americans each year and 
account for 75% of the nation’s health care 
spending. Those who are able to visit their 
doctor for preventive healthcare can often 
avoid these more serious conditions.

EMPLOYMENT
OATS takes people to and from work who 
might not otherwise be able to maintain em-
ployment, and this is good for the local econ-
omy. OATS also employs over 700 staff mem-
bers throughout Missouri.

LOCAL SPENDING
Many people ride OATS so they can take care 
of essential shopping needs, and that means 
more dollars being spent in our own commu-
nities. Plus, OATS buys fuel for and maintains a 
fleet of over 700 vehicles.

WHY RIDE OATS
You can count on OATS for safe, reliable 
transportation with a team of outstanding 
drivers who will assure you arrive at your 
destination on time

Ride conveniently for a variety 
of needs
You can ride OATS for work, medical, es-
sential shopping, business & nutrition pur-
poses. On most routes, you will be picked 
up and delivered right at your front door.

Meet new people and make new 
friends
Our riders say that traveling with friends 
and neighbors is one of their favorite 

things about OATS, and many riders also get to 
know the drivers. You, too, can see new places 
and meet new people when you ride.

Trust OATS drivers to be profes-
sional, safe, courteous and friendly
All drivers partake in regular training to ensure 
you ride safely. They are happy to assist you 
on and off the bus, and can also help with your 
groceries and other packages if needed.

Enjoy increased independence 
With OATS you can be in charge of your 
transportation needs and meet them without 
having to rely on neighbors, friends or family 
members. Go when you want!

OUR MISSION

It is because of OATS that I have more independence.- Katy M.

I am a disabled individual who solely depends on OATS transportation for everything- shopping, vet 
appointments, going to see my family, and most of all doctor’s appointments. I don’t know how I would 
manage without it.- Susie W.

Our patients love their OATS drivers and so do we! It’s a great organization. - Bev G. “ ”



 
CAMDEN COUNTY SB40 BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

RESOLUTION NO. 2018-21  
 
 

Helping to Meet the Challenges of Developmental Disabilities 

 

OATS CONTRACT RENEWAL JULY 1ST, 2018, TO JUNE 30TH, 2019 – EMPLOYMENT TRANSPORTATION  

 

WHEREAS, Sections 205.968-205.972 RSMo and subsequent passage by Camden Co. 

voters of the Senate Bill 40 enabling legislation in August of 1980 allows for the business, 

property, affairs, administrative control, and management to rest solely with the 

Camden County SB40 Board of Directors (dba Camden County Developmental Disability 

Resources). 

 

WHEREAS, the Camden County SB 40 Board may purchase services from service 

providers for Camden County clients when warranted and deemed necessary. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: 

 

1.  That the Camden County Senate Bill 40 Board (dba Camden County Developmental 

Disability Resources), hereafter referred to as the “Board”, acknowledges the need to 

purchase transportation services for employment purposes, and authorizes the Executive 

Director to initiate and sign the Contract Renewal with OATS, Inc, as identified in 

Attachment “A” hereto for providing transportation services for eligible Camden County 

clients. 

2.  A quorum has been established for vote on this resolution, this resolution has been 

approved by a majority Board vote as defined in the Board bylaws, and this resolution 

shall remain in effect until otherwise amended or changed.  

 

 

 
_________________________________________                    ___________________________ 

Chairman                                                                              Date 

 

 

_________________________________________                    ___________________________ 

Secretary, Vice Chairman, or Treasurer                             Date 
 

 

 

 



Attachment “A” to 

Resolution 2018-21 



Agreement for Services 

G-702 

R-3/14 

 

This agreement is entered into by CCDDR/SB 40 Board (employment transportation) located at 5816 Osage Beach Parkway, Suite 

108 Osage Beach, MO 65065 hereinafter known as the “Contracting Party” and OATS, Inc., 2501 Maguire Blvd, Ste 101, Columbia, 

MO  65201, a general not-for-profit corporation organized under the Laws of the State of Missouri, hereinafter known as “OATS”. 

 

The Contracting Party and OATS hereby agree as follows: 

1. This Agreement becomes effective on July 1, 2018 and terminates on June 30, 2019. 

 

2. OATS agrees to transport CCDDR/SB 40 Board clients for the purpose of employment.  Note: Scheduling of requested services 

is dependent upon vehicle and driver availability.  OATS will strive to fill all requests made, but makes no guarantee of service 

availability unless service is of a routine and recurring nature and specific commitment has been made by OATS that service will be 

made available. Note: In rural areas, OATS is a general public transportation provider and therefore routes are published and open 

to the public. 

 

3. OATS will invoice the Contracting Party for services rendered by the tenth (10th) day of the following month, and the Contracting 

Party will pay OATS at a rate of $4.00 in-town & $5.00 in-county per unit (one-way trip) which $.40 per unit (as defined above) 

is depreciation which OATS will deposit in a restricted account for use in cost of replacing vehicles. This rate is based on a gasoline 

price of $2.009 per gallon.  For every $0.50 increase or decrease in the cost of gasoline, the rate will be increased or decreased by 

$.40 per unit.  The average cost for gasoline will be evaluated monthly based on an analysis of the company-wide negotiated 

payment agreement (which is generally less than pump price). Payment is due upon receipt of invoice; service cannot be delivered 

for delinquent accounts. 

 

4. The estimated total amount of compensation for services to be provided under this Agreement is (state specific dollar amount and 

explanation):   Service will be billed at $4.00 per one way trip for in-town service (inside city limits of Camdenton) and $5.00 

per one-way trip for in-county service (locations within Camden County) Example: client working five days per week $4.00 

or $5.00  times 10 one-way trips = $40.00 per week in-town/ $50.00 per week in-county service. 

 

5. If service is to be provided by OATS on more than one day, the Contracting Party agrees to schedule OATS Service for any 

particular date at least twenty-four (24) hours in advance.  Scheduling will be done through the appropriate Regional Director. 

 

6. Unless otherwise noted in item 9 below, OATS service will not be provided on the following paid holidays: New Years Day; 

Martin Luther King, Jr. Day; Presidents Day; Memorial Day; 4th of July; Labor Day; Thanksgiving; the Day After Thanksgiving; 

and Christmas Day. Should a holiday fall on a Saturday, the preceding Friday is recognized; if a holiday falls on a Sunday, the 

following Monday is recognized. 

 

7. In cases of inclement weather OATS’s general policy is to use the school bus closings as a guideline; however, the final decision 

rests with the OATS driver. Should weather, or other unforeseen events, necessitate the cancellation of service; the Contracting 

Party will be notified. 

 

8. This Agreement may be terminated by either party by providing thirty (30) days written notice to the other party. 

 

9. Special conditions which apply to this Agreement are as follows (specify “none” if none apply): 

Transportation will be provided Monday through Sunday except as noted in paragraph 6, excluding those holidays which  

occur on a Saturday and Sunday, and as noted in paragraph 7.  For holidays not recognized by an employer, transportation will be  

accommodated. 

 

 

Contracting Party      OATS, Inc. 

By:   By:  

Date:    Dorothy Yeager, Executive Director 

   Date:  Regional Director’s initials:  

Special Billing Number:  0296 Charter Checklist 
  Does this service support OATS’ program purposes(must check one)?: 

Check one:   Rural  YES – Not considered charter; no further action required. 

  Urban  NO – Is contracting party a Qualified Human Service Org.?    
    Yes - Funding source #:  _____ (from FTA List) 
    No – Contact Home Office for instruction 





 
CAMDEN COUNTY SB40 BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

RESOLUTION NO. 2018-22  
 
 

Helping to Meet the Challenges of Developmental Disabilities 

 

OATS MOU FOR TRI-COUNTY TRANSIT DEVIATED ROUTE & EXTENDED WEEK/WEEKEND SERVICES  

 

WHEREAS, Sections 205.968-205.972 RSMo and subsequent passage by Camden Co. 

voters of the Senate Bill 40 enabling legislation in August of 1980 allows for the business, 

property, affairs, administrative control, and management to rest solely with the 

Camden County SB40 Board of Directors (dba Camden County Developmental Disability 

Resources). 

 

WHEREAS, the Camden County SB 40 Board may purchase services from service 

providers for Camden County clients when warranted and deemed necessary. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: 

 

1.  That the Camden County Senate Bill 40 Board (dba Camden County Developmental 

Disability Resources), hereafter referred to as the “Board”, acknowledges the need to 

fund community inclusive public transportation opportunities available to CCDDR 

clients through the Tri-County Transit deviated route system and the Tri-County Transit 

extended weekday/weekend services. 

2.  That the Board hereby approves the OATS, Inc. Special Funding Requests totaling 

$55,000 for the expanded public transit system ($45,000 for the Extended Week/Weekday 

services and $10,000 for the Deviated Route services) and authorizes the Executive 

Director to initiate and sign a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with OATS, Inc. 

(see Attachment “A” hereto). 

3.  A quorum has been established for vote on this resolution, this resolution has been 

approved by a majority Board vote as defined in the Board bylaws, and this resolution 

shall remain in effect until otherwise amended or changed.  

 

 

 
_________________________________________                    ___________________________ 

Chairman                                                                              Date 

 

 

_________________________________________                    ___________________________ 

Secretary, Vice Chairman, or Treasurer                             Date 
 

 

 

 



Attachment “A” to 

Resolution 2018-22 



Memorandum of Understanding 
 

 This Memorandum of Understanding (“MOU”) is made and effective this 1st day of July, 

2018 by and between Camden County SB 40 Board at 5816 Osage Beach Parkway, Suite 108 

Osage Beach, MO  65065 and OATS, Inc., a general not-for-profit corporation organized under 

the Laws of the State of Missouri (“OATS”) for the purpose of providing funding for community 

inclusive public transportation opportunities for CCDDR clients through the Services of the Tri-

County Transit deviated route and the Tri-County Transit extended weekday/weekend services. 

 

 This MOU will be for the transportation of CCDDR clients for community based 

employment and other community based activities. Provision of requested services is dependent 

upon vehicle and driver availability.  OATS will strive to fill all requests made, but makes no 

guarantee of service availability at the time of the request. 

 

 OATS is a public transportation provider and is fully insured and compliant with all 

applicable regulations regarding public transportation. 

 

This MOU will be current and standing unless revoked by either party upon thirty (30) 

day written notice to the other party. 

 

 

 Camden County SB 40 Board OATS, Inc. 

 

 

 

By: ________________________________ By: _________________________________ 

       Dorothy Yeager, Executive Director 

 

       

 

            





   

INCOME     

   

Regular Service: 2,397 hours year @ $35.00 per hr 83,895.00$      

 -$                 

TOTAL INCOME 83,895.00$      

 Funding Sources:  

Section 5311 38,895$          

Camden County SB 40 45,000$          

Total 83,895$          

EXPENSE    

Driver Wages  40,335.15$      

Dispatching 7,577.45$        

Driver Benefits 7,474.44$        

Fuel & Lubricants 11,732.88$      

Tires & Tubes 745.59$           

Other Material/Supplies for Vehicle 2,863.49$        

Preventive Maintenance 4,642.52$        

Insurance 5,754.16$        

Licensing & Taxes 252.46$           

 TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 81,378.15$      

Administration Costs (billing & recordkeeping) - 3% of Income 2,516.85$        

Total Expenses 83,895.00$      

Expanded Service of Current Service Levels Only

One Vehicle: 2:00 p.m.-8:00 p.m. Monday-Friday

One Vehicle: 9:00 a.m.-3:00 p.m. Saturday and Sunday

OPERATING BUDGET

OATS, Inc.

Camden County Expanded Transportation Project

For the Period of July 1, 2018-June 30, 2019 (FY18)

Mid Missouri Region

G:\Board & Committee Meetings\May 2018 Board & Committee Meetings\OATS Info\Camden County (Expanded Transportation Project) budget FY18







   

INCOME    Total Project Miller County Morgan County Camden County OATS

Funding Sources:  

Section 5311 Inter city $60,300 $0 $0 $0 $60,300

 In-Kind  $14,600 $0 $0 $4,800 $9,800

Camden Co. SB 40 $10,000 $0 $0 $10,000

 Morgan Co. SB 40 $5,000 $0 $5,000 $0

Miller Co. SB 40 $5,000 $5,000 $0 $0

Medicaid and Other Contracts $65,300 $0 $0 $0 $65,300

TOTAL INCOME $160,200 $5,000 $5,000 $14,800 $135,400

EXPENSES    

Driver Wages $76,763 $38,074 $18,423 $20,265

Dispatching (in-kind) $5,000 $0 $0 $0 $5,000

Driver Benefits $11,247 $5,579 $2,699 $2,969

Fuel & Lubricants $23,672 $11,741 $5,681 $6,249

Tires & Tubes $2,266 $1,124 $544 $598

Other Material/Supplies for Vehicle $3,624 $1,797 $870 $957

Preventive Maintenance $5,369 $2,663 $1,289 $1,417

Insurance $12,640 $6,269 $3,034 $3,337

Licensing & Taxes $651 $323 $156 $172

 Total Operating Expenses $141,232 $67,571 $32,696 $35,965 $5,000

Administration Costs (billing & recordkeeping) $4,746 $2,354 $1,139 $1,253 $0

Public Outreach, Education & Awareness $4,622 $0 $0 $0 $4,622

Office Lease (in-kind)/Utilities $9,600 $0 $0 $4,800 $4,800

Total Administrative Expenses $18,968 $2,354 $1,139 $6,053 $9,422

TOTAL EXPENSES $160,200 $69,925 $33,835 $42,018 $14,422

3 buses 5 Days per week, Approximately 11 hrs per day (Route Begins at 7:00 AM)

OPERATING BUDGET

OATS Transit

TRI-County Transit Deviated Route

Mid Missouri Region

Rider Cost per Trip - $2.00

F:\Board & Committee Meetings\May 2018 Board & Committee Meetings\OATS Info\Tri-County Transit Deviated Route System Budget



Ed
Typewritten Text
Tri-County Transit Deviated Route

Ed
Typewritten Text

Ed
Typewritten Text

Ed
Typewritten Text

Ed
Typewritten Text

Ed
Typewritten Text

Ed
Typewritten Text

Ed
Typewritten Text

Ed
Typewritten Text

Ed
Typewritten Text

Ed
Typewritten Text

Ed
Typewritten Text

Ed
Typewritten Text

Ed
Typewritten Text

Ed
Typewritten Text

Ed
Typewritten Text

Ed
Typewritten Text

Ed
Typewritten Text

Ed
Typewritten Text

Ed
Typewritten Text

Ed
Typewritten Text

Ed
Typewritten Text



Miller, Morgan & Camden County 

Deviated Route Public Transportation System 

Introduction 

Health and wellness depends on many factors, including making sure 
people have access to their communities, employment opportunities and 
health care resources.  In Missouri, public transportation is a coordinated 
and multi-modal system with capacity for on-demand services, including 
smaller city and county-operated systems.  Our nation's transportation 
infrastructure has been developed to ensure people who depend upon 
public transportation and require accessibility can utilize these services to 
live with independence in their communities.  Missouri's transportation 
infrastructure lags behind, including in Miller, Morgan and Camden 
Counties; yet, the health care industry's current focus is on preventive 
services that increase the efficiency and effectiveness of medical care, 
reduce emergency department utilization, prevent hospitalizations, and 
prevent hospital re-admissions.  Thus, there is an emerging awareness of 
the need to increase partnerships between health/wellness providers and 
transportation providers.1   
 
The Lake Area Transportation Task Force began meeting in April of 2016.  
The Task Force was a combination of various state agencies' 
representatives, city leaders, county leaders, health care providers, 
transportation providers (public and private), political subdivisions, not-for-
profit organizations' representatives and other community resource 
agencies' representatives which convened to discuss transportation 
barriers and the effect these barriers have on the health and wellness of 
local residents.  The research developed and work performed by the Task 
Force led to the formation of the Lake of the Ozarks Transportation Council 
(LOTC) and the creation of Tri-County Transit (TCT).  The mission of LOTC 
is to promote, develop, operate and/or fund mass transportation facilities 
and/or programs in and around the Lake of the Ozarks region.  TCT was 
created in July of 2017 to provide evening and weekend access to public 
transportation systems, and the demand has been overwhelming.  Both the 
Task Force and LOTC have determined through their efforts that a deviated 

                                                            
1 National Center for Mobility Management, Rides to Wellness, (2015): 1. 



route capturing Miller, Morgan and Camden County residents is needed to 
ensure access to employment, health care facilities/services, daily living 
needs/services and other vital resources in the community.  TCT's deviated 
route system would include three, 12-rider maximum capacity buses 
operating year-round, Monday through Friday, approximately 11 hours per 
day and traveling a "loop" through Miller, Morgan and Camden Counties 
extending over 125 miles (one-way).  The deviated route would encompass 
at least 18 communities in the Lake Area, including Eldon, Lake Ozark, 
Tuscumbia, Kaiser, Osage Beach, Brumley, Iberia, Aurora Springs, West 
Aurora, Kaiser, Versailles, Gravois Mills, Laurie, Barnett, Sunrise Beach, 
Greenview, Linn Creek and Camdenton. 
 
LOTC will be the fiscal agent for various grant funding efforts (specifically 
local) on behalf of the coordinated TCT deviated route system.  LOTC is 
partnering with various local and regional agencies, including Miller County 
Board for Services for the Developmentally Disabled (SB 40 Board), 
Camden County Developmental Disability Resources (SB 40 Board), 
Morgan County SB 40 Board for the Developmentally Disabled, OATS 
Transit, Local Area Needs Initiative and the Salvation Army.  OATS Transit, 
which currently has a modest service schedule in all three counties, will 
provide services for the TCT deviated route.  The current system offered 
requires interested riders to schedule their trips in advance; however, the 
deviated route system would be a pick-up and drop-off on demand service.  
There will be pre-determined pick-up locations for the general public along 
the service route, drop-off destinations anywhere within the boundaries of 
the identified communities, direct pick-up for individuals with disabilities or 
seniors within one mile on either side along the deviated route, and direct 
drop-off to destinations within one mile on either side along the deviated 
route.  There will be one interconnecting bus, and there will be two buses 
operating along the deviated route which would be continuous and moving 
in opposite travel directions in order to alleviate trip time to destinations and 
rider return trip time to original pick-up locations (if needed); thereby, 
making travel as convenient as possible. 
 

 
 
 
 



Research and Data Analysis 
 

In 2016, there were several surveys and research efforts developed by 
Task Force members and local partnering agencies.  The focus of these 
endeavors was based on access to employment; the most effective ways to 
utilize federal, state and local funds to provide transportation services; and 
comparing the Lake Area to other areas in the state where public 
transportation systems are more readily available. 
 
Camden County Individuals with Developmental Disabilities Analysis 
 
Camden County Developmental Disability Resources (CCDDR) 
administered two surveys to Camden County residents with intellectual 
and/or developmental disabilities (I/DD) who were approaching working 
age (15-years-of-age or older) or who were already of working age.  The 
first survey conducted was based on competitive integrated employment 
opportunities (i.e. not sheltered workshop employment).  The second 
survey was conducted to determine if transportation was a barrier to 
community inclusion activities and/or accessing community resources.  The 
results clearly showed most individuals wanted competitive jobs in the 
community, and transportation was a significant barrier to obtaining 
competitive jobs, community inclusion activities and accessing community 
resources. 
 
CCDDR then completed a cost analysis to determine if existing Medicaid 
Waiver and SB 40 funded transportation services for Camden County 
residents with I/DD could be implemented more efficiently by contracting 
with a public transportation provider (OATS Transit).  What the analysis 
revealed was public transportation services could be provided at a lesser 
expense than direct services funded through coordinated Medicaid Waiver 
and SB 40 funding.  It should be noted Medicaid State Plan transportation 
services, which encompasses a much larger population of consumers, 
were not included in the analysis. 
 
General Public & Local Employers Analysis 
 
The members of the Task Force wanted to know if transportation was a 
barrier to successful employment and how inadequate transportation 
affects employers in the community.  Surveys were administered to 



approximately 600 community members and approximately 60 major 
businesses in Morgan, Miller, Camden and Laclede Counties.  The results 
indicated transportation is a significant barrier and employer turnover is 
directly affected, which suggests expanding local public transportation 
services could help to alleviate deficiencies. 
 
Regional Comparisons and Analysis 
 
The Task Force also examined publicly available data to determine how the 
local area compares to other specific regions in Missouri.  State service 
supports, population, household, and other related data were compared to 
metropolitan areas which have ample public transportations systems 
available to their general populations.  Data from the local area showed 
compelling similarities to more densely populated areas with significant 
public transportation systems, which strongly suggests there is a need to 
expand public transportation services in the Lake Area.  These 
comparisons and other pertinent data related to Miller, Morgan, and 
Camden Counties were compiled by Task Force members and presented 
at informational venues. 
 
National Analysis and Discussion 
 
Public transportation can be an important factor in accessing health 
services and can result in greater preventive care, fewer unnecessary 
hospital readmissions, and lower health care costs. This can lead to 
improved health for those with chronic conditions and reduced health 
disparities by ensuring at-risk populations can access health care, which 
includes preventive services and screenings. Missed appointments are a 
major issue in the medical community with one study noting that 
approximately 3.6 million Americans miss or delay medical care due to 
transportation issues.2  By improving access we may be able to reduce 
hospital readmissions, as 18 percent of patients discharged from the 
hospital are readmitted within 30 days and one third are readmitted within 
90 days.3  Medicare spends $15 billion annually for hospital readmissions.4 

                                                            
2 Transportation Resource Board, The National Academies of Sciences, Engineering, and Medicine, Cost Benefit 
Analysis of Providing Non-Emergency Medical Transportation, (2005).   
3 CMS Office of the Actuary, Estimated Financial Effects of the ‘Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act,’ as 
Amended,” (2010).   
4 Medicare Payment Advisory Commission, “Report to the Congress: Promoting Medicare Payment Advisory 
Commission, (2007): 103.   



 

Summary 
 

Professionals from health-related industries have identified a correlation 
between transportation barriers and health/wellness.  The expansion of 
public transportation systems in the Lake Area can lead to a more efficient 
use of public funds and can effectively reduce overall health care costs.  
Increased access to health care, employment, and other community 
resources needed to sustain daily living increase the probability of happier, 
healthier lifestyles.  The Task Force members held lengthy meetings and 
significant discussions about existing transportation services in Miller, 
Morgan and Camden Counties.  Their conclusions from the research and 
analysis prompted the formation of LOTC, the creation of TCT, and the 
promotion of expanded public transportations systems.  The demand for 
expanded, local public transportation systems has grown and the need to 
provide additional supports continues to evolve as services become 
increasingly community-based.  There is an often unrecognized, symbiotic 
relationship between health/wellness and public transportation services.        
 

 
    
 
 
 
 
 

 
 


	Cover Page to Open Session
	Cover Page to Agenda
	Tentative Agenda for Open Session
	Cover Page to Open Session Minutes
	April 16th Open Session Board Minutes
	Cover Page to CLC Monthly Report
	CLC Monthly Report
	Pages 1-9
	Page 12
	Color -Night Glow 5K Full Sheet Flier Final 2018 

	Cover Page to LAI Monthly Report
	LAI April external reports
	Cover Page to Support Coordination Report
	Support Coordination Report
	Cover Page to CARF
	Cover Page to Employment Report
	Employment Workbook by SC.xlsx
	Cover Page to Agency Economic Report
	Agency Economic Report
	Cover Page to CC Statement
	March Credit Card Invoices (2)
	Cover Page to Resolutions
	Resolution 2018-16
	Resolution 2018-16 Attachment A
	Resolution 2018-17
	Resolution 2018-17 Attachment A
	Resolution 2018-18
	Resolution 2018-18 Attachment A
	Resolution 2018-19
	Resolution 2018-19 Attachment A
	Resolution 2018-20
	Resolution 2018-20 Attachment A
	Cover Page to OATS Inc
	Single Feasible Source
	501c3 Letter
	Articles of Incorporation
	Camden County SB40- OATS EAL1000149-02 05-16-2018 10-10
	Bylaws of OATS - 2017
	Strategic Plan 2014-2018
	FY2017 Annual Report
	OATS 990
	OATS 2017 Audit Report
	Oats, Inc. - 2016 P&L
	Oats, Inc. - Balance Sheet
	Oats, Inc. - Employment Transportation
	OATS Profile
	Oats, Inc.-Report
	Brochure- Riders 2017

	Resolution 2018-21
	Resolution 2018-21 Attachment A-1
	Resolution 2018-21 Attachment A-2
	Resolution 2018-22
	Resolution 2018-22 Attachment A-1
	Resolution 2018-22 Attachment A-2
	Resolution 2018-22 Attachment A-3
	Resolution 2018-22 Attachment A-4
	Resolution 2018-22 Attachment A-5
	Resolution 2018-22 Attachment A-6
	Resolution 2018-22 Attachment A-7
	Resolution 2018-22 Attachment A-8



